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Financial Summary -

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Consolidated Income Statements

Year ended 31 December

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Turnover 604,595 633,008 506,693 439,358 534,346
Cost of sales (505,790) (486,786) (383,583) (349,071) (433,344)
Gross profit 98,805 146,222 123,110 Q0,287 101,002
Other income 5,407 6,733 3,551 3,123 1,989
Selling and disfribution expenses (85,741) (62,203) (45,819 (41,351) (35,533)
Administrative expenses (50,987) (39,678) (32,737 (29,451) (33,348)
(Loss)/profit from operating
activities (32,516) 51,074 48,105 22,608 34,110
Finance costs (4,513) (2,437) (2,635) (623) (70)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (37,029) 48,637 45,470 21,985 34,040
Income tax (1,677) (2,914) (5,170) (2,360) (3,251)
(Loss)/profit for the year (38,706) 45,723 40,300 19,625 30,789
Assets and Liabilities
As at 31 December
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current assefs 402,792 368,952 218,997 188,180 127,943
Current assets 322,402 367,676 298,779 225,521 225,216
Current liabilities 320,933 328,928 208,182 107,566 111,433
Net current assets 1,469 38,748 Q0,597 117,955 113,783
Total assets less current liabilities 404,261 407,700 309,594 306,135 241,726
Non-current liabilities 42,410 - 8,532 42,518 32,372
Net assets 361,851 407,700 301,062 263,617 209,354
Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 354,368 399,311 301,062 258,400 205,009
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present the annual results of Hing lee (HK)
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012 ("Year 2012").

Year 2012 was a difficult year for the furniture markets. Despite China’s economy maintaining steady growth,
the unfavourable environments brought by the Chinese Government's macroeconomic austerity measures, as well

as various other unfavorable factors have been affecting the operations of the Group.

In addition to the weak market conditions, many newly built home units were smaller in size. This led to a drop
in demand for our large size classical furniture which resulted in diminished turnover in Year 2012. The Group
has allocated more resources to the research and development (‘R&D") of new products in response to market

changes. New products targeting home of smaller size will be launched in the furniture fair in March 2013.

| would like to thank our business units for their valuable contributions and support in Year 2012. Many changes
to the Company were instituted by our management team during the year by implementing prudent cost control
measures fo adjust to the fough economic environment. These changes will improve the Company's cost structure

and position us to better compete for success in the years to come.

To maintain our competitiveness in the market, it is always our aim to seek collaboration partners to explore
opportunities. We believe a well diversified product range can equip the Group to face new challenges in the
market. We also proactively evaluate new fechnology and new area of business opportunities that is fitted to the

market needs in order fo widen our existing business lines.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to the management team and all staff

for their hard work and dedication in the past years.
Last but not least, | would also like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers and business

partners for their continuous support. | am confident that with the team effort, we will be able to deliver

encouraging results in the years to come.

Yours faithfully

Sung Kai Hing
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis -

BUSINESS REVIEW

The unfavourable environments brought by the Chinese Government’s macroeconomic austerity measures, as well

as various other unfavorable factors have been affecting the operations of the Group.

Many newly built home units were smaller in size. This led to a drop in demand for our large size classical
furniture which resulted in diminished turnover in 2012. The Group has allocated more resources to the research
and development ("R&D") of new products in response to market changes. In addition, various measures have

been implemented to enhance our core competitiveness, in particular, costs control and information technology.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

The Group's turnover decreased by approximately 4.5% from about HK$633.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2011 to HK$604.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The decrease was primarily due
to the decrease in domestic sales of approximately HK$43.8 million or 11.4%. The decrease in the domestic
sales during the year was due to the decrease in demand of classical furniture which is large in size. In addition,
the Group was adversely affected by the continuously restrictive housing policy of the Central Government and

the low consumption senfiment.

Gross Profit

During the period under review, the Group’s gross profit margin decreased by 6.8% percentage points to
16.3% (31 December 2011: 23.1%]. The drop in the gross profit was the result of a number of factors. Firstly,
the demand for Group’s high price point classical furniture decreased. Secondly, in order to strengthen our
distributors position and hence the Group's sales network, the Group offered discount to our strategic distributors.
Moreover, the prices of major raw materials (such as MDF board, ironware, paint and sponge) and the costs of

fransportation generally increased when compared with the corresponding period of 2011.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses amounted to about HK$85.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2012, against about HK$62.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2011. The increase in
selling and distribution expenses was the result of the increase in staff costs, marketing promotional expenses,
fransportation costs and the general increase of expenses.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's administrative expenses were approximately HK$51.0
million against about HK$39.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2011, representing an increase of
about 28.5%. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase in the staff costs.

Loss for the Year

Loss aftributable to equity holders of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 was approximately
HK$40.5 million as compared to profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$41.4
million for the corresponding period last year.

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 5
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EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2012, the Group employed approximately 1,700 employees (201 1: approximately 1,500].
Salaries are reviewed annually and discretionary bonuses are paid on annual basis with reference to individual
performance appraisals, inflation and prevailing market condition. Other benefits available fo eligible employees
include retirement benefits and medical insurance schemes. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees of the Group and other eligible participants.

Apart from regular on-the-job training, the Group also engages professional parties to provide training fo its staff
to ensure they can obtain updated job related knowledge and enhance the quality of work.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s overall funding and treasury activities are currently managed and controlled by the senior
management. There is no significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies from those of last year.
Please refer to Note 30(a) to the financial statements of this annual report for the financial risk management of

the Group.

The Group maintained cash and bank balances of HK$93.4 million as ot 31 December 2012 (31 December
2011: HK$123.6 million).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank borrowings amounting to HK$113.5 million {31 December
2011: HK$124.9 million). As at the same date, the gearing ratio (total debt/total equity] was 1.0 (31
December 2011: 0.81).

As at 31 December 2012, the current ratio (current assets/current liabilities) was 1.0 time (31 December 2011:
1.1) and the net current assets amounted to HK$ 1.5 million (31 December 201 1: HK$38.7 million).

The ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills payable and the maturity profiles of bank borrowings are set out
in Notes 23 and 24 to the financial statements of this annual report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to operating loss for the year by principal activities is set out

in Note 13 to the financial statements of this annual report.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that are denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The currency giving rise
to this risk is primarily Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United States dollars. As most of the fransactions are
denominated and seftled in the same currency, the Group's foreign currency risk is considered to be minimal
by the Directors at the reporting date. The Group does not hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for
frading purposes or for hedging against fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, but the management continuously
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the

need arise.
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had banking facilities which were secured by (i) a lefter of undertaking
over the Group's consfruction in progress and buildings; (i) legal charges over the Group's medium-term
leasehold land outside Hong Kong; (iii) restricted bank deposits of approximately HK$ 1.5 million; (iv] guarantees
from the Government of the HKSAR under the Special loan Guarantee Scheme and the SME loan Guarantee
Scheme.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

During the year under review, the Group did not have any significant investment and acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries and associated companies. However, in order to centralize the management and operation of the
panel wood furniture business and hence enhance the efficiency of the Group, the Group is planning to build an
office building in Shenzhen. It is intended that the construction costs will be funded by internal resources of the

Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

PROFIT GUARANTEE

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2011, the Company and the purchaser
(being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into an agreement with the Vendor and the
remaining shareholders to acquire a total of 60% of the issued share capital in Astromax Investment Limited ("the
Acquisition”] and hence its subsidiaries (the “Astromax Group”). The Acquisition was completed in May 2011.
Pursuant to the agreement in respect of the Acquisition, the Vendor has undertaken with the purchaser that for the
financial year ending 31 December 2011, the net profit after tax and exceptional items shall not be less than
HK$12,000,000 (“Net Profit"). If there is shortfall in relation to the Net Profit for the financial year ending 31
December 2011, the consideration for the acquisition shall be adjusted downwards by an amount equivalent to
1.5 times of the amount of the shortfall. In the event that the Net Profit is a negative figure, the consideration for
the acquisition shall be adjusted downwards by an amount equivalent to the sum of HK$18,000,000 and the
absolute value of such negative figure. The amount of adjustment shall be paid by the Vendor to the purchaser

by cashier order.

According to the audited financial statements prepared under the PRC Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
for the year ended 31 December 2011, the Guaranteed Profit has been met, no shortfall thereof is noted.
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PROSPECTS

To cope with the uncertain market conditions and to strengthen the competitiveness of the Group, the Group has
implemented and will continue to take a series of cost cutting programs fo reduce its overhead costs and improve
operating efficiency. Each department throughout the Group is required to rationalize its individual head counts

to keep staff at o minimum.

The Group will continue fo strengthen its position in the medium to high-end home furniture market with its plan
fo explore opportunities on distribution network expansion, as well as collaboration with property developers
for home furniture projects. The Group will confinue to actively partficipate in various international furniture
exhibitions and marketing promotions and strengthen its design capacity. We will keep abreast of market trends
and enhance the cost-saving and execution capabilities of our supply chain so as to optimise the product life
cycle and shorten lead times. We will also fully utilise our R&D resources and design talents in order to cater to

consumers’ specific needs and preferences.
Despite the present difficult operating environment, the Group is opfimistic over the long-term prospects of

the furniture industry in China. The Group will also explore potential mergers and acquisition opportunities at

appropriate fime to further secure our market position and hence enhance shareholders’ value.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” and each a “Director”) recognize the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the management structures and infernal control procedures of the
Group so as fo achieve effective accountability. The Directors continuously observe the principles of good
corporate governance in the interests of shareholders and devote considerable effort to identifying and

formalizing best practice.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company has complied with the code provisions as sef out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices during the period from January 1, 2012 to March 31, 2012 and
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report during the period from April 1, 2012 to
December 31, 2012 (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the following

deviation:

Code provision A.2.1

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Sung Kai Hing is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same
individual provides the Group with strong and consistent leadership in the development and execution of long-

term business strategies.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) as the required standard for securities transactions by Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiries of all Directors and all Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’

securities fransactions during the year under review.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

The Board members of the Company currently are:

Executive directors:

Mr. Sung Kai Hing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung

Non-executive director:

Mr. Fang Yan Zau, Alexander

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Sun Jian
Ms. Shao Hanging
Mr. Kong Hing Ki

The biographical defails of the Directors and other senior management are disclosed in the section headed

"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 22 in this Annual Report.

The composition of the Board is well balanced. Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive
corporate and sfrategic planning experiences that may confribute to the business of the Group. Upon reviewing
(i) the directorships and major commitments of each Director; and (ii] the aftendance rate of each Director at the
meetings of the Board and its committees, the Board is satisfied that all Directors have spent sufficient time in

performing their responsibilities during 2012.

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and (2) of the Llisting Rules during the
year under review. All independent non-executive directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of their

independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of the Company. The Board's primary duty is to
ensure the viability of the Company and fo ensure that it is managed in the best inferests of the shareholders as a

whole while taking into account the interests of other stakeholders.

The Group has adopted internal guidelines in sefting forth matters that require the Board's approval. Apart from
its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group's strategic plan, key operational initiatives, major
investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group's financial performance, identifies principal risks of
the Group's business and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business

operations and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the management.

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Board is also responsible for performing the functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The
Board will meet to develop, review and monitor the Company's corporate governance policies and practices,
fo review and monitor training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, fo
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

During the year of 2012, in relation to the corporate governance functions, the Board has reviewed the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and the regulatory and statutory requirements, and the disclosure in
the corporate governance report.

BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

The Board met four times during the year ended 31 December 2012. The attendance record of each Director at
these regular board meetings is set out in the following table:

Directors Board Meetings
Held Attended

Mr. Sung Kai Hing

Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung
Mr. Fang Yan Zau, Alexander
Mr. Sun Jian

Ms. Shao Hanging

Mr. Kong Hing Ki

ADNMNDMDMNDMDN
ADNMNDMDMNDMDN

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties
properly. In compliance with code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, af least 14 days’ notice have been given
for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity to atfend. Notice, agenda and board papers
of regular Board meetings were sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to the
meetings. Directors were free to contribute and share their views at meetings and major decisions would only be
taken after deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who were considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and would abstain from voting on the relevant resolution. Sufficient resources are provided including for seeking
independent professional advice to enable Directors to discharge their duties and responsibilities. Full minutes
were prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment, the final
version of which were endorsed in the subsequent Board meeting.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed term
as disclosed in the sub-section “Directors” in the section headed “Directors” Report” in this annual report. Every
Director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/

her independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and it still considers the independent non-executive
Directors fo be independent.

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 11

ANNUAL REPORT 2012



- Corporate Governance Report

12

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Directors should participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution into the Board remains informed and relevant. The Directors are
committed to complying with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code which came into effect on April 1, 2012 on
Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and provided a record
of fraining they received for the financial year ended December 31, 2012 to the Company.

According to the records provided by the Directors, the fraining received by each of the Directors during the

financial year ended 31 December 2012 is summarized as follows:—

Type of continuous professional
Directors development training

Executive Directors
Sung Kai Hing AB
Cheung Kong Cheung A,B

Non-Executive Director
Fang Yan Zau, Alexander AB

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Sun Jian AB

Shao Hanging A,B

Kong Hing Ki AB

Note:

A: Attending seminar(s) or training session(s)

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the Company’s business or directors” duties and responsibilities,

the latest development of the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements etc.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, with written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient implementation of their

functions. Specific responsibilities have been delegated to the above committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provisions of the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and infernal control system of the Group. The Audit Committee currently has three members
comprising Mr. Kong Hing Ki (Chairman), Mr. Sun Jian, and Ms. Shao Hanging, all being independent non-

executive Directors.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had held 2 meetings, the atfendance of the members is set

out below:

Directors Meetings of the
Audit Committee
Held Attended

Mr. Sun Jian 2 2

Ms. Shao Hanging 2 2

Mr. Kong Hing Ki 2 2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group and the annual
and inferim results of the Group as well as assessed the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk
management system. The Audit Committee reported that there was no material uncertainty that cast doubt on the

Company's going concern ability.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Remuneration Committee with written terms of reference which are in compliance
with the code provisions of the Code. The Remuneration Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
on, among other matters, the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and the senior
management of the Group and are delegated by the Board the responsibility to determine on behalf of the
Board the remuneration for Directors and senior management of the Group. The Remuneration Committee consists
of three members, namely, Mr. Sun Jian (Chairman), Ms. Shao Hanging and Mr. Kong Hing Ki, all being

independent non-executive Directors.
The remuneration of the Directors was defermined with reference to their respective experience, responsibilities

with the Group and general market conditions. Any discretionary bonus is linked to the performance of the Group

and of the individual Director.
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One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2012 to review the remuneration and incentive

package of the senior management. Attendance of the members is set out below:

Directors Meetings of the
Remuneration Committee
Held Attended
Mr. Sun Jian 1 1
Ms. Shao Hanging ] ]
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 1 ]

Details of the remuneration of each Director for 2012 are set out in the Note 8 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.

The biographies of members of the senior management team at the date of this annual report are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report. Remuneration
payable to senior management (excluding Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2012 is within the

following bands:

Number of individuals

2012 2011
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 5
HK$ 1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 2 3

In addition, the Company has adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme (the "PreslPO Share Option Scheme”) and
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”] both on 29 May 2009. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is to grant new options fo replace the options granted under a share option scheme previously
adopted by the Company and to continue to give the participants of the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme an
opportunity fo share in the success of the Group and to motivate the participants to optimize their performance
and efficiency and also fo retain participants whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and
profitability of the Group. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant option to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the growth of the Group and to provide the

Group with a more flexible means to reward and remunerate the eligible participants.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up a Nomination Committee with written terms of reference which are in compliance with
the code provisions of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations to the Board
on appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee consists of five
members, namely, Ms. Shao Hanging (Chairman), Mr. Sung Kai Hing, Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung, Mr. Sun Jian
and Mr. Kong Hing Ki.

One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2012 for reviewing the structure, size and

composition of the Board. Aftendance of the members is set out below:

Directors Meetings of the
Nomination Committee
Held Attended

Ms. Shao Hanging

Mr. Sung Kai Hing

Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung
Mr. Sun Jian

Mr. Kong Hing Ki

S —
I —

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Directors’ Responsibility for the Accounts

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in Hong Kong.

The statement by the auditors of the Company about their responsibilities for the financial statements is sef out in
the report of the independent auditor’s report contained in this Annual Report. There are no material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company engaged Baker Tilly Hong Kong Llimited (“Baker Tilly") as its external auditors for year ended
31 December 2012. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit is included in Note 6 fo the consolidated
financial statements in this Annual Report. No non-audit services have been provided by the external auditors
during the year under review.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The compliance and internal audit department, which is independent to the Company's daily operations and
accounting functions, is responsible for establishing the Group’s internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls.

The compliance and internal audit department also formulates the internal audit plan and procedures, conducts
periodic independent reviews on the operations of individual divisions to identify any irregularities and risks,
develops action plans and recommendations to address the identified risks, and reports to the management on
any key findings and progress of the internal audit process.

The Audit Committee which comprises all the independent non-executive Directors has the duties to, among other
things, review the internal control systems and procedures for compliance with the relevant accounting, financial
and Llisting Rules requirements.

In addition, the executive Directors have attended external continuous training sessions relating to corporate
governance fo further enhance their knowledge on various on-going obligations and duties of a listed issuer and
its directors under the listing Rules and the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers.

During the year under review, Baker Tilly carried out an assessment on the Company's internal control systems
and procedures in relation to financial reporting, disclosure under the Llisting Rules and the Companies
Ordinance, and risk management. Baker Tilly advised that there is no material findings which has to be brought
to the attention of the Board or the shareholders of the Company. After due and careful inquiries, the Audit
Committee and the Board considered the policies and procedures of internal control covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management system are effective and adequate
and will conduct ongoing review on the effectiveness of the system. The Audit Committee also considered, after
due and careful inquiries, that the Company has complied with the internal control system and the relevant
accounting, financial and Listing Rules requirements.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, other members of the respective committees, are available fo

answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings.

The Company held one general meeting, being the annual general meeting, in 2012. The attendance record of

the Directors at such meeting is set out below:

Directors Attendance
Executive Directors

Sung Kai Hing ]

Cheung Kong Cheung 1

Non-Executive Director

Fang Yan Zau, Alexander 1

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Sun Jian ]
Shao Hanging 1
Kong Hing Ki 1

In order to keep shareholders well informed of the business activities and direction of the Group, information
about the Group has also been provided to the shareholders through financial reports and announcements. The
Company has established its own corporate website www.hingleehk.com.hk to facilitate effective communication
with its shareholders and the public. The Company will confinue to enhance communications and relationships

with its shareholders and investors.

Shareholders, investors and interested parties can make enquiries to the Company through the following means:

By e-mail: kevinwong@hingleehk.com.hk
Telephone number: (852) 2151-9600
By post: Unit 1101, 11/F Delta House

3 On Yiu Street

Shatin, N.T.

Hong Kong
Attention: Public Relationship
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a)

(b)

Right to convene special general meeting

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-fenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall af all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the company secrefary
of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

The written requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited
at the registered office of the Company and at the Company's head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Unit 1101, 11th Floor, Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong, and such request may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
requisitionisi(s).

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon the
confirmation of the branch share registrar that the request is in order, the company secretary of the
Company will ask the Board to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with all relevant statutory and regulatory requirements to all registered members. On the
contrary, if the request is verified as not in order, the requisitionist(s) will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, a special general meeting will not be convened as requested.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meefing the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves do so in accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, either any number of the registered Shareholders
holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetfings of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next general meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists
must be deposited at the registered office of the Company and the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's relevant expenses
and not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution or
not less than one week before the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if, after a
copy of the requisition notice of a resolution has been deposited at the registered office of the Company,
an AGM is called for a datfe six weeks or less after the requisition has been deposited, the requisition
though not deposited within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.
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As regard the procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the procedures

made available on the website of the Company at www.hingleehk.com.hk.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at shareholders’

meetings on each substantially separate issue, including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at a shareholders’ meeting will be taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules.
The chairman of the shareholders” meeting will explain detailed procedures for conducting a poll answer
any questions from shareholder regarding voting by way of poll. The poll results will be posted on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after the shareholders’ meeting.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Kit Wai is an employee of the Company and was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company in May 2009. The biographical details of Mr. Wong are set out in the section headed “Biographical

Details of Directors and Senior Management”.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Llisting Rules, Mr. Wong has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional

training during the financial year ended 31 December 2012.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the Company's constitutional documents during the year.

PUBLICATION OF AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Company’s financial results announcement for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 and this Annual
Report are published on the website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkex.com.hk and on the Company’s website

at www.hingleehk.com.hk.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Executive Director

Mr. Sung Kai Hing (REUE %), aged 56, is an Executive Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company and one of the founders of the Group and he has over 17 years of experience in the
furniture industry. Mr. Sung was appointed as a Director on 20 April 2004. He is primarily responsible for the
overall strategic planning and business development of the Group as well as overseeing the daily operations
of the Group. Besides, he is also a director of cerfain subsidiaries of the Company and a member of the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Sung has been appointed as a parttime instructor with specialisation in business operation, strategic
planning and supply chain management at FARMZEKZE (Nanjing Forestry University] and AR EAMERHE K2
(Central South University of Forestry and Technology| (formerly known as (Central South Forestry University)] since
June 2004 and November 2004 respectively.

Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung (R#EBE%4), oged 51, is an Executive Director and one of the founders of
the Group and he has over 17 years of experience in the furniture industry. Mr. Cheung was appointed as
a Director on 20 April 2004. He is responsible for the administration and human resources management, as
well as upholstered furniture business of the Group. Besides, he is also a direcfor of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and a member of the Nomination Committee. He has been appointed as a parttime instructor with
specialisation in international trade and trading of home furniture at BRMZFEARZE (Nanjing Forestry University)
and HFEMEREAKE (Central South University of Forestry and Technology) (formerly known as A EaMRERT
(Central South Forestry University)) since June 2004 and November 2004 respectively.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Yan Zau, Alexander (5F1-&E%%), aged 41, is a Non-Executive Director and was appointed
as a Director on 28 July 2006. He has over 11 years of experience in business development. Mr. Fang is
currently an independent non-executive director of Chinney Alliance Group Limited (stock code: 385), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited, he was a director
of Pandatel AG which is a listed public company at Frankfurt Stock Exchange and principally engaged in the
provision of telecommunication related services, from January 2006 to 2009. Mr. Fang holds a master of
business administration degree in general management from J. L. Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern
University and a Bachelor of Science degree in accounting from University of Southern California. Mr. Fang is
the son of Mr. Fang Shin who is the controlling shareholder of the Company.

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Sun Jian (R %%), aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 1 July
2007. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee. He has over 13 years of experience in retail businesses and is a director and the chief
executive officer of Home Inns & Hotel Management, Inc., a company which is principally engaged in the hotel
industry with its shares listed on the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System in
the U.S.. Mr. Sun obtained a bachelor's degree in hygiene management from L/8E KRS (Shanghai Medical
University) (subsequently renamed as BB RS FBEERE (Shanghai Medical College of Fudan University)) in
July 1987. He is the vice president of R BIEHEL & (China Chain Store & Franchise Association).
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Ms. Shao Hanging (BE&F X L), aged 75, was appoinfed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on
29 May 2009. She is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. She is a parttime professor and a mentor to the doctorate candidates of the
economics faculty of FBIARKZE (Renmin University of China). Ms. Shao was a vicechairlady of REIAR
BamEeRERE R TELZEE (Shenzhen Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference)
from April 1997 to May 2000 and was elected as a fellow in the World Academy of Productivity Science by
World Confederation of Productivity Science in 2006. Ms. Shao is an independent director of F RXEERHH
R A ] (China Fangda Group Co., ltd.), a company listed on RYIFEHKZXFFT (the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
Ms. Shao obtained a bachelor's degree of national economic planning from FEBIAERAKZ (Renmin University of
China) in 1964.

Mr. Kong Hing Ki CI#E#%4%) aged 42, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on
29 May 2009. He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. He has over 16 years of experience in accounting, auditing and finance,
gained from infernational accountancy and commercial firms. He is an independent non-executive director of KEE
Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2011), a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited, and also an independent non-executive director of RENHENG Enterprise
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8012), a company whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited. Mr. Kong holds a bachelor's degree of commerce from Australian
National University and a master of business administration degree from Deakin University. He is a fellow

member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA Australia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang Wei Ye (E&E%% %), aged 58, is one of the founders of the Group. He joined the Group in
1995 and is the head of the Group’s design and development department, as well as the production department,
and is responsible for overseeing the design, development and manufacture of the Group's furniture products.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Huang has over 22 years of experience in the
furniture industry. Mr. Huang is currently the Chairman of Shenzhen Furniture Trade Association. Mr. Huang has
been appointed as a part-time instructor with specialisation in product design, production strategies and industry
trend analysis at FARMZERE (Nanjing Forestry University) and R EMERHEKRE (Central South University
of Forestry and Technology) (formerly known as HE#EEL (Central South Forestry University]) since 2003. He
obtained a master of business administration degree from dE R AREZ (Peking University) in July 2007,

Mr. Chan Kwok Kin (BREBIE%4), aged 55, is one of the founders of the Group. Being the head of the
sales and marketing department, as well as the procurement department of the Group, he is responsible for
formulating the Group’s sales and marketing strategies and procurement policies and overseeing the Group's
sales and marketing activities. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan has over
17 vyears of experience in the furniture industry. He was appointed as a partfime instructor with specialisation in
sales and marketing strategies and brand development at B R#ZEKRE (Nanjing Forestry University) and # E#K
ZERIEAKE (Central South University of Forestry and Technology) (formerly known as HE#EET (Central South
Forestry University)) since 2004.
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Mr. Wu Guo long (REIBESE4), aged 38, is the vice design and development manager of the Group.
Since January 2008, he has been appointed as the general manager of Shenzhen Xingli Furniture Company
Limited ("Shenzhen Xingli”). Mr. Wu joined the Group in 1996 after graduation from the university and has over
12 vears of experience in the furniture industry. He obtained a bachelor's degree in interior and furniture design
in 1996 from FEMEET (Central South Forestry University) (subsequently renamed as FEAMRE R KZ (Central
South University of Forestry and Technology) in 2005).

Mr. Tao Limin (BRIK%%.), aged 33, is the production manager of the Group and the head of the
production department of the Group's factories in the PRC. He is responsible for overseeing the production
operations at all the Group's factories in the PRC. Mr. Tao has extensive experience in furniture industry. He
obtained a diploma in wood science and engineering in 2004 from R EMERL (Central South University of
Forestry and Technology) [subsequently renamed as R EAMERIEARE (Central South University of Forestry and
Technology) in 2005). Mr. Tao joined the Group in 2010.

Mr. Pu Cai Jun (GERE %), aged 50, is the financial confroller of the PRC Operation. He is responsible
for all financial and accounting matters in respect of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Pu joined the Group
in 2002 and has over 12 years of experience in financial controlling. He was the finance manager of Dahao
Furniture during the period from 1985 to 2002. He obtained a bachelor's degree in accounting from 4 81 48

287 (Hunan Finance and Economics Institute) in July 1991.

Mr. Tse Kin Hung (BZH#5%4%), aged 40, is the financial controller of the Group. He is responsible for
the financial and accounting matters of Group. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a practising certificate holder of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Tse has over 10 years of experience in finance, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the Group in 2008,
Mr. Tse worked for Moores Rowland, Pacific CMA, Inc. and Kaisa Group Holdings Lid (stock code 1638), a
Company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited. Mr. Tse

graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree in business studies in 1996.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Kit Wai (ERE%4%E), aged 43, is the chief financial officer and the company secretary of
the Group. He is responsible for supervising the Group’s financial management and overseeing the company
secrefarial and compliance affairs of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group in January 2007 and has over 11
years of experience in accounting and finance. He obtained a master of business administration degree from
Deckin University, Australia and a bachelor of commerce degree from The University of New South Wales. He is
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA Australia. Besides,
Mr. Wong is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secrefaries and an associate member

of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, the United Kingdom.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company submit herewith their annual report and the

audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") on 20 April 2004 and was re-domiciled
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability on 30 March 2007. The registered office address is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
The principal place of business of the Company is located at Unit 1101, 11th Floor, Delta House, 3 On Yiu

Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business activities of the Group are the design, manufacture, sale and marketing of home furniture
products including mainly wood-based furniture, sofa, mattresses and licensing of its own brands and product
designs.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 37 of this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011
HK1.95 cents per ordinary share).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2012

are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s paid up capital for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set out in Note 28 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report. No shares are issued by the Company during the year.
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PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 22 December 2006, the Company adopted a share option scheme [the “2006 Scheme”) under which

options to subscribe for shares of the Company had been granted to certain Directors or employees of the
Group, all of which were cancelled and replaced by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
The purpose of the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme is to grant new options to replace the options granted under
the 2006 Scheme and fo continue fo give the participants of the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme an opportunity to
share in the success of the Group and to motivate the participants to optimize their performance and efficiency
and also to retain participants whose contributions are important to the longterm growth and profitability of
the Group. The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, approved by the written resolutions of the
shareholders on 29 May 2009, are substantially the same as the terms of the Share Option Scheme except that:

(@) the subscription price for Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is at HK$1.0647 per Share;

(b)  the total number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is 14,986,695 Shares, representing approximately 7.49% of the total issued
share capital of the Company immediately following completion of the placing and public offer and the
capitalisation issue of the Shares but excluding the issue and allotment of Shares upon the exercise of the
options which were granted under the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme and which may be granted under

any other schemes of the Company;

[c)  save for options which have been granted, no further options will be offered or granted as the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall end on the day immediately prior to 22 June 2009 (the date when the Shares
were first listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong lmited (the “Stock Exchange”))
(the “Listing Date”); and

(d]  the Company by ordinary resolution in general meeting or the Board may af any time terminate the
operation of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and in such event, no further option shall be offered but the
provisions of the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects in

respect of any options granted thereto but not yet exercised at the time of termination.

The vesting period of the options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is determined by reference to
the outstanding vesting period of the replaced options granted under the 2006 Scheme, but no option granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme will be exercisable within the first six months after the Llisting Date.
Details of the vesting period and expiry date of the options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are

set out in the Prospectus.

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Directors’ Report -

As at the date of this annual report, certain Directors and employees of the Group were granted share options
to subscribe for Shares at the exercise price of HK$1.0647 per Share under the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme.
Defails of the share options movements during the year ended 31 December 2012 under the Pre-lPO Share
Option Scheme are as follows:

Number of share options

Outstanding
Outstanding share options
share options granted under
granted under the Pre-IPO
the Pre-IPO Share Option
Share Option Cancelled/  Scheme as at
Scheme as at 1 Granted during Exercised Lapsed during 31 December
Name January 2012 Date of grant the year during the year the year 2012 Exercise period
Directors of the Company
Mr. Sung Kai Hing 1,498,670 29 May 2009 - - - 1.498,670 23/12/2009 -
30/12/2016
Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung 1,498,670 29 May 2009 - - - 1,498,670 23/12/2009 -
30/12/2016
Mr. Sun Jian 374,667 29 May 2009 - - - 374,667 23/12/2009 -
19/6/2017
187,334 - - - 187,334 20/6/2010 -
19/6/2017
187,334 - - - 187,334 20/6/2011 -
19/6/2017
Other employees
In aggregate 3746,675 29 May 2000 - - - 3,746,675 23/12/2009 -
30/12/2016
374,667 - - - 374,667 23/12/2000 -
19/6/2017
374,668 - - - 374,668 31/12/2009 -
30/12/2016
374,667 - - - 374,667 31/12/2010 -
30/12/2016
187,334 - - - 187,334 20/6/2010 -
19/6/2017
187,334 - - - 187,334 20/6/2011 -
19/6/2017
Tofal 8,992,020 - - - 8,992,020

Note: The closing price before the date of grant is not available as the Shares were first listed on the Stock Exchange on 22
June 2009.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) by a writlen resolution of the
shareholders on 29 May 2009. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to fulltime or parttime employees, directors, consultants, advisers, distributor, contractor, supplier, service
provider, agent, customer and business partner of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries (the "Eligible
Participants”) as incentives or rewards for their confribution to the growth of the Group and to provide the
Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the Eligible

Participants.

Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus. Certain principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme are summarized as follows and in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statement in

this annual report:

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years commencing from 29 May 2009 and will
remain in force until 28 May 2019, affer which period no further options will be offered or granted but the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect to
options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme. The Company may by ordinary resolution in general
meeting or the Board may at any fime terminate the Share Option Scheme without prejudice to the exercise of

options granted prior o such termination.

The subscription price for Shares in respect of any particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall be such price as the Board shall defermine, provided that such price shall be at least the highest of (i the
closing price per Share on the Main Board as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date
of offer of the option, which must be a business day; and (i) the average closing price per Share on Main Board
as sfated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five (5] business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the option; and (i) the nominal value of a Share. Subject to such terms and conditions as the
Board may determine in its absolute discretion, there is no general requirement on the minimum period for which

an option must be held before an option can be exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

The fotal number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (excluding the share options granted
under the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme) must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Listing Date, such 10% being equivalent to 20,000,000 Shares. As at the date of this report,
options for the subscription of 4,000,000 Shares (representing approximately 1.65% of the issued share capital
of the Company) are available for issue under the Share Option Scheme. In addition, if any options subsequently
lapsed in accordance with the ferms of the Share Option Scheme, such options will not be counted for the

purpose of calculating the said 10% limit.
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As at the date of this annual report, options for the subscription of 16,000,000 Shares have been granted to
certain Directors and employees of the Group under the Share Option Scheme. Details of the share options

movements during the year ended 31 December 2012 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Number of share options
Outstanding Outstanding
share options share options
granted under granted under
the Share the Share
Option Scheme Exercised  Cancelled/  Option scheme
as at 1 January Granted during during  Lapsed during as at 31
Name 2012 Dateofgrant  theperiod  theperiod  the period  December 2012 Exercise period
Directors of the Company
Mr. Sung Kai Hing 750,000 5 Moy 20114 - - - 750,000 5/5/2012-4/5/2014
750,000 5 Moy 20114 - - - 750,000 1/1/2013 - 4/5/2014
Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung 750,000 5 May 20114 - - - 750,000 5/5/2012-4/5/2014
750,000 5 May 20114 - - - 750000 1/1/2013-4/5/2014
Mr. Sun Jion 150,000 23 Apil 2010* - - - 150,000 23/4/2011 - 22/4/2013
150,000 23 Agiil 2010* - - - 150,000 1/1/2012- 22/4/2013
Ms. Shao Hanging 150,000 23 ol 2010* - - - 150,000 23/4/2011-22/4/2013
150,000 23 ol 2010* - - - 150,000 1/1/2012-22/4/2013
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 150,000 23 Agiil 2010* - - - 150,000 23/4/2011 -22/4/2013
150,000 23 Apil 2010* - - - 150,000 1/1/2012-22/4/2013
Other employees
In aggregate 5,550,000 23 Apil 2010* - - - 5,550,000 23/4/2011-22/4/2013
5,550,000 23 Aprl 2010* - - - 5,550,000 1/1/2012 - 22/4/2013
500,000 5 May 20114 - - - 500,000 5/5/2012-4/5/2014
500,000 5 Moy 20114 - - - 500,000 1/1/2013-4/5/2014
Total 16,000,000 - - - 16,000,000
Notes:

The exercise price of the options granted on 22 April 2010 under the Share Option Scheme as set out above is
HK$1.422 per Share. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant of such options was
HK$1.39 per Share.

# The exercise price of the options granted on 5 May 2011 under the Share Option Scheme as set out above is
HK$1.80 per Share. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant of such options was

HK$1.60 per share.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which

would oblige the Company fo offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's

listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in Note 28 to

the financial statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$153.8 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted for approximately 31.7% of the tofal sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 8.7%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 23.9% of the total purchase for the year and purchase from the Group's largest

supplier included therein amounted to 4.9%.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital] had any interest in the Group's five largest

customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Sung Kai Hing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer] (appointed on 20 April 2004)
Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung (appointed on 20 April 2004)

Non-executive director:

Mr. Fang Yan Zau, Alexander (appointed on 28 July 2006)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Sun Jian (appointed on 1 July 2007)
Ms. Shao Hanging (appointed on 29 May 2009)
Mr. Kong Hing Ki (appointed on 29 May 2009)
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Pursuant to byelaw 84 of the byelaws of the Company, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the

Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation.

By virtue of byelaw 84 of the byelaws of the Company, the office of certain Directors, namely Mr. Shao
Hanging and Mr. Kong Hing Ki will end at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All of the above Directors,

being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years with effect from the Listing Date and thereafter be continuous unless and until terminated by not less than
three months' prior notice in writing served by either party on the other or by payment of three months’ fixed

salary in lieu of such notice.

Each of the non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors has entered into a lefter of

appointment with the Company for a period of two years commencing from 22 June 2011.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Sun Jian, Ms.
Shao Hanging and Mr. Kong Hing Ki, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the Company considers them fo be

independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and other senior management are disclosed in the section headed

"Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 22 in this annual report.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, none of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, in any confract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates was a

party.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates had any interest in a business which competes or

likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company

in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the

meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the

"SFO") which were required to be entered info the register required fo be kept under section 352 of the SFO or

otherwise were required to be nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8

of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such

provisions of the SFO] and/or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the "Model Code”), were as follows:

(i) Long positions in shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director/

chief executive Nature of interests

Mr. Sung Kai Hing [note 1 Interest of a controlled corporation
Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung [nofe 2) Interest of a controlled corporation
Notes:

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company

7.54%
7.54%

1. The Shares were held by King Right Holdings Limited [“King Right"), @ company beneficially wholly-owned by

Mr. Sung Kai Hing, who is also the sole director of King Right. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Sung Kai Hing is

deemed to be inferested in the same parcel of Shares in which King Right is interested.

2. The Shares were held by United Sino Limited (“United Sino”), a company beneficially wholly- owned by Mr.

Cheung Kong Cheung, who is also the sole director of United Sino. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Cheung Kong

Cheung is deemed fo be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which United Sino is interested.
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(ii) Rights to acquire shares or debentures

As at 31 December 2012, details of the share options granted by the Company to the Directors were as

follows:
Outstanding
as at
31 December
Name of Director Date of grant Exercise price  Exercise period 2012
Mr. Sung Kai Hing 29 May 2009 HK$1.0647 23 December 2009 1,498,670
to 30 December 2016
5 May 2011 HK$1.80 5 May 2012 750,000
fo 4 May 2014
5 May 2011 HK$1.80 1 January 2013 750,000
fo 4 May 2014
Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung 29 May 2009 HK$1.0647 23 December 2009 tfo 1,498,670
fo 30 December 2016
5 May 2011 HK$1.80 5 May 2012 750,000
to 4 May 2014
5 May 2011 HK$1.80 1 January 2013 750,000
to 4 May 2014
Mr. Sun Jian 29 May 2009 HK$1.0647 23 December 2009 to 374,667
19 June 2017
20 June 2010 to 187,334
19 June 2017
20 June 2011 to 187,334
19 June 2017
23 April 2010 HK$1.4220 23 April 2011 to 150,000
22 April 2013
1 January 2012 to 150,000
22 April 2013
Ms. Shao Hanging 23 April 2010 HK$1.4220 23 April 2011 to 150,000
22 April 2013
1 January 2012 to 150,000
22 April 2013
Mr. Kong Hing Ki 23 April 2010 HK$1.4220 23 April 2011 o 150,000
22 April 2013
1 January 2012 to 150,000
22 April 2013
7,646,675

Note: The Company’s shares were first listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 22 June 2009. The offer
price of the Shares under the initial pub|ic offering is HK$1.02 per Share.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had or was deemed to have any inferests or short position in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associate corporations [within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO],
which were required to be entered into the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of

the SFO or the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company) who have

interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to

be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares of HK$0.01 each

Name

Triple Express Enterprises
Limited (“Triple Express”)
Mr. Fang Shin

Mrs. Fang Chang Rose Jean

Top Prospect International
Limited (“Top Prospect”)
Mr. Yuan Han Xiang

King Right Holdings Limited
("King Right")

Ms. Wong Wai King

United Sino Limited
("United Sino")

Ms. Li Xin

Golden Sunday Limited
("Golden Sunday”)

Mr. Chan Kwok Kin

Ms. Ho Fung Ying

Top Right Trading Limited
(“Top Right”)

Mr. Huang Wei Ye

Ms. Ye Jian Qun

Capacity
Beneficial owner

Interest of a controlled
corporation
Family interests

Beneficial owner

Interest of a confrolled
corporation

Beneficial owner

Family interests

Beneficial owner

Family interests

Beneficial owner

Interest of a confrolled
corporation
Family interests

Beneficial owner

Interest of a controlled
corporation

Family interests

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Number of
Shares

67,964,104

67,964,104

67,964,104
36,404,000

36,404,000

18,280,155

18,280,155
18,280,155

18,280,155
18,280,155

18,280,155

18,280,155
17,195,431

17,195,431

17,195,431

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
%

28.04

28.04

28.04
15.02

15.02
/.54

/.54
/.54

/.54
/.54

/.54

/.54
7.09

7.09

7.09

Note
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Notes:

1. Triple Express is a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Fang Shin. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Fang Shin is
deemed to be inferested in the same parcel of Shares in which Triple Express is interested. Mrs. Fang Chang Rose Jean
is the spouse of Mr. Fang Shin and is deemed fo be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Mr. Fang Shin is

interested by virtue of the SFO.

2. Top Prospect is a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Yuan Han Xiang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Yuan Han

Xiang is deemed fo be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Top Prospect is interested.

3. King Right is a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Sung Kai Hing, who is also the sole director of King Right.
Ms. Wong Wai King is the spouse of Mr. Sung Kai Hing and is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares
in which Mr. Sung Kai Hing is interested by virtue of the SFO.

4. United Sino is a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung, who is also the sole director of
United Sino. Ms. Li Xin is the spouse of Mr. Cheung Kong Cheung and is deemed to be interested in the same parcel
of Shares in which Mr. Cheung is interested by virtue of the SFO.

5. Golden Sunday is a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Chan Kwok Kin. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Golden Sunday is inferested. Ms. Ho Fung Ying is the
spouse of Mr. Chan and is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Mr. Chan is interested by
virtue of the SFO.

o. Top Right is a company beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Huang Wei Ye. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Huang Wei Ye is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Top Right is interested. Ms. Ye Jian Qun is the spouse
of Mr. Huang Wei Ye and is deemed fo be interested in the same parcel of Shares in which Mr. Huang is interested
by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified by any persons [other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required fo be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Events after the reporting period

There are no significant events subsequent to 31 December 2012 which would materially affect the Group’s and

the Company’s operating and financial performance as of the date of this annual report.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed fo maintaining the highest standard of corporate governance practices. Information
on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report

on pages 9 to 19 of this annual report.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as af the date of this annual report as required under the Listing

Rules.

AUDITORS

After the resignation of Moore Stephens as auditors of the Company on 29 October 2009, Baker Tilly Hong
Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly") was appointed as the auditors of the Company on 2 November 2009. Baker Tilly
shall hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. Baker Tilly, being eligible, will
offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for reappointment of Baker Tilly as auditors of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, we would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their continuous supports. Our thanks also go to all staff members of the Group for their

contributions and commitment to the continuous success of the Group.

By Order of the Board of

Hing Lee (HK) Holdings Limited
Sung Kai Hing

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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,":’7

BAKER TILLY
HONG KONG | /i it

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Hing Lee (HK) Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and re-domiciled and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hing lee (HK) Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”] set out on pages 37 to 116, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a frue and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the enfity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation

of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013

Lo Wing See

Practising certificate number PO4607
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for the year ended 31 December 2012
[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$'000

Turnover 4 604,595 633,008
Cost of sales (505,790) (486,7806)
Gross profit 98,805 146,222
Other income 5 5,407 6,733
Selling and disfribution expenses (85,741) (62,203)
Administrative expenses (50,987) (39,678
(Loss)/profit from operating activities (32,516) 51,074
Finance costs 6(a) (4,513) (2,437)
(Loss)/profit before taxation 6 (37,029) 48,637
Income tax /7 (1,677) (2,914)
(Loss)/profit for the year (38,706) 45,723
Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company 10 (40,520) 41,418

Non-confrolling interests 1,814 4,305
(Loss)/profit for the year (38,706) 45,723
(Loss)/earnings per share (HK cents) 12

— Basic (16.72) 18.01

~ Diluted (16.72) 17.81

The notes on pages 45 to 116 form part of the consolidated financial statements. Details of dividends payable

to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the (loss)/profit for the year are set out in note 28(b).
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for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
Exchange differences on translation of

financial statements of overseas subsidiaries

Availablefor-sale investments:
Gain/(loss) on fair value changes of available-for-sale investments
Reclassification adjustments upon disposal

of availablefor-sale investments

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year

The notes on pages 45 to 116 form part of the consolidated financial statements.

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

Note

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
(38,706) 45,723
(249) 12,107

18 (15)

= (2,563)

(231) 9,529
(38,937) 55,252
(40,751) 50,947
1,814 4,305
(38,937) 55,252
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Consolidated statement of financial position -

as at 31 December 2012
[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 14 301,947 266,997
Prepaid lease payments 15 48,660 49,791
Goodwill 16 52,120 52,120
Availablefor-sale investments 18 65 44
402,792 368,952
Current assets
Prepaid lease payments 15 1,119 1,119
Inventories 19 118,376 111,442
Trade and other receivables 20 107,998 120,728
Restricted bank deposits 21 1,517 10,757
Cash and cash equivalents 22 93,392 123,630
322,402 367,676
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 241,968 201,308
Current portion of bank borrowings 24 77,774 124,904
Current taxation 25(a) 1,191 2,721
320,933 328,928
Net current assets 1,469 38,748
Total assets less current liabilities 404,261 407,700
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 23 6,647 =
Non-current portion of bank borrowings 24 35,763 =
42,410 =
NET ASSETS 361,851 407,700
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_ a

as at 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28
Share capital

Reserves

Total equity attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2013.

Director Director

The notes on pages 45 to 116 form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000

2,424 2,424
351,944 396,887
354,368 399,311

7,483 8,389
361,851 407,700
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Statement of financial position -

as at 31 December 2012
[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 17 156 156
Current assets
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 20 12 31
Dividend receivable from a subsidiary 17 61,175 61,175
Amount due from a subsidiary 17 104,427 104,742
Cash and cash equivalents 22 325 6,587
165,939 172,535
Current liabilities
Other payables and accrued charges 23 1,080 2,760
Net current assets 164,859 169,775
NET ASSETS 165,015 169,931
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 28
Share capital 2,424 2,424
Reserves 162,591 167,507
Total equity 165,015 169,931
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2013.
Director Director
The notes on pages 45 to 116 form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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for the year ended 31 December 2012

42

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Note
Balance at 1 January 2011

Changes in equity for 2011;
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income 11

Tolol comprehensive income for fhe year

Dividends approved in respect

of the previous yeor 28
Acquison of subsiciaries 2
Eaulysetfed shore-based fiansactions
Appropriafon of reserve
Dividends declored in respect

of the curent year 26

Balance ot 31 December 2011
and 1 January 2012

Changes in equity for 2012:
Loss for e year
Other comprehensiv loss Il

Tolol comprehensive loss for fhe yer

Dividsnds approved in respect

of the previous yeor 28
Fquitseffed shorebased fransactions
Dividends paid fo norrconfling

inferests

Balance at 31 December 2012

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Statutory Share Fair Non-

Share  Share Exchange reserve  Merger  optfion  valve  Copital Retained controlling ~ Total

copital premium  reserve  fund  reserve reserve reserve reserve  profits  Total interests equity
nofe nofe [nofe [nofe [nofe [nofe [nofe [nofe
2] 200 280l 28l 28l 28l 2806 28l

HKE000  HKF000  HKFO00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKF000  HK§000

2000 83623 28345 8765 25430 5875 2573 [6486] 150877 301,00 - 301,002

= = = = = = = - 448 A48 4305 45718

= - 12107 = = - (2578 = - 950 - 950

= - 12007 = = - (2578 - 4418 30947 4305 9522

= = = = = = - - W ) - 775

4 57882 = = = = = . - M6 4084 62330

- - - - - 23 - = - 23 - 238

- - - 832 - - - - B3 - - -

= = = = = = = - 057 15,979 - 557

244 11505 40452 957 25430 8,263 Bl (64800 178131 399311 8389 407700

= = = = = . = - {40520 1405200 1814 (38,700

= = (249 = = = 18 = = (231] = (231)

= = (249) = = = 18 - 405200 (40751 1814 (38937)

- - - - - - - - W w7 - W)

= = = = = 335 - - - 335 = 335

- - - - - - - - - - N )

244 141505 40203 9597 25450 8798 13 [6486) 132884 354368 7483 361801

The notes on pages 45 to 116 form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated cash flow statement -

for the year ended 31 December 2012
[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2012 2011
Note HK$’000 HK$'000

Operating activities
(Loss)/profit before taxation (37,029) 48,637

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 6(c) 1,115 1,119
Depreciation 6(c) 13,045 11,551
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments 5 (3) (89)
Equity-setiled share-based payment expenses 535 2,388
Write-down of inventories recognised 6(c) 9,152 9,014
Impairment of trade receivables recognised/reversed) 6(c) 2,060 (358)
Interest expense 6/(a) 4,513 2,437
Interest income 5 (249) (973)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (net) 6(c) 733 (20)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments 5 - 2,187
Reclassification from equity on disposal
of availablefor-sale investments 5 - (2,563
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in working capital (6,128) 73,330
Increase in invenfories (16,113) (27,119)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 10,487 (25,285)
Increase in trade and other payables 52,062 50,115
Cash generated from operations 40,308 71,041
Interest received 249 973
Interest paid (7,099) 4,710)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (983) =
PRC Enterprises Income Tax paid (2,219) (1,679)
Net cash generated from operating activities 30,256 65,625
HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 43

ANNUAL REPORT 2012



- Consolidated cash flow statement

44

for the year ended 31 December 2012
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Investing activities

Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries
Decrease in resfricted bank deposits

Dividends received from available-for-sale investments
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from new bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 45 to 116 form part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Note

29

28(b)

22

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
- 2,122

9,238 7,128

- 89
(52,384) (103,033
1,394 60

= 5,034
(41,752) (88,600)
53,428 84,434
(64,765) (46,531)
(4,727) (13,332
(2,720) =
(18,784) 24,571
(30,280) 1,596
123,630 131,662
42 (9,628)
93,392 123,630
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements -

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

COMPANY INFORMATION

Hing lee (HK) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") on
20 April 2004 and re-domiciled in Bermuda on 30 March 2007. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at Unit 1101, 11th Floor, Delta House, 3 On Yiu Streef, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of

the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), unless otherwise

indicated, which is also the functional currency of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Inferpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ["HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group and the Company is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group and the Company for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 comprise the

Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).
The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements is the

historical cost basis except that the financial instruments classified as available-for-sale investments

are stated af their fair value as explained in the accounting policy set out in note 2(f).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2

G

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

()

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements (continued)

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies
and reporfed amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the

financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In

assessing confrol, potfential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken info account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair

value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-confrolling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the fotal
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and the
equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any inferest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(f)).

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(i)], unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

(d) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of
the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group fo former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 (Revised 2008), Business combinations, are
recognised at their fair values, except that:

= deferred tax assefs or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12, Income faxes,
and HKAS 19, Employee benefits, respectively;

= liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s
share-based payment awards are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2, Share-based

payment; and
= assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5,
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations, are measured in accordance

with that standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the Group's interest in the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assefs exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling inferests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests” proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of

measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted refrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being made
against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the measurement period about facts and

circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.

Measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date. The subsequent
accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent setilement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with
HKAS 39, or HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets, as appropriate, with

the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value af the acquisition date [i.e. the date when the Group

obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit or loss when

the Group obtains control over the acquiree.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see
note 2(i)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any aftributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f)  Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company's policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables
include only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except
where indicated otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assefs. Any atiributable fransaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest earned on these investments
as these are recognised in accordance with the policies set out in note 2(s)(iv) and (iii).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have the positive ability and intention fo
hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note 2{i)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial position
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Investments in securities which do not fall info any of the above categories are classified as
availableforsale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the fair value reserve, except foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of monetary items such as debt securities which are recognised
directly in profit or loss. Dividend income from these investments is recognised in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy sef out in note 2(s)(iv) and, where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2(s(iii). VWhen these investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(i)).

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment under construction and equipment
pending installation and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2[i)). Cost comprises
direct costs of construction. Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress
is transferred to property, plant and equipment when substantially all of the activities necessary to

prepare the assets for their infended use was completed.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their

estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings Over the lease terms

leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease terms, whichever is shorter
Motor vehicles 18% — 20%

Office equipment 10% — 20%

Plant and machinery 10% — 33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost
or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a fransaction or a series of fransactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group defermines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in refurn for a payment or a series of payments. Such a defermination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Leased assets (continued)
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are

classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease term except where the property is classified as an investment

property or is held for development for sale.

(i) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and non-current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as availableforsale securities
are reviewed atf the end of each reporting period to defermine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Obijective evidence of impairment includes observable data that

comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:
= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that

have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

= a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

HING LEE

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as follows:

(HK)

For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note
2(i)lii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the

estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in accordance with note 21ilii).

For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for equity securities

carried at cost are not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate [i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for assefs with credit

risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which

would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables (continued)

= For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognised in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost [net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss

on that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of availableforsale equity
securities are not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair

value of such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-forsale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in such

circumstances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against frade debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged fo the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

= property, plant and equipment (other than properties carried at revalued amounts);

= pre-paid inferests in leasehold land classified as being held under an operating lease;

and

= goodwill.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for
goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication

of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assefs that generates

cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit fo which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit
(or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assefs in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the

reversals are recognised.

(i) Trademarks and patents

All costs associated with the development and registration of trademarks and patents are charged

to profit or loss in the period when such expenditure is incurred.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the

estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories
fo net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the

reversa | OCCuUTrs.

() Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(i)), except where the receivables are interestfree loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are

stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(m) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the

effective interest method.

(n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value. Except for financial guarantee
liabilities measured in accordance with note 2(r)(i], trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 55

ANNUAL REPORT 2012



- Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

56

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash af bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and

other financial institutions, and shortterm, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into

known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having

been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand

and form an infegral part of the Group’s cash management are also included as a component of

cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

(p) Employee benefits

(i)

HING LEE

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or seftlement is deferred and the effect

would be material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binominal laftice model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the options

will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an assef, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is fransferred to the share premium account) or the option

expires (when it is released directly fo retained profits).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(p) Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) ~ Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by

having a detailed formal plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

(q) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current fax and movements in deferred tax assefs and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in

respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can
be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate fo the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods info which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse

in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assetfs or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating fo investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reserve in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation
or sefllement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using fax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not

discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
is reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it

becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income faxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax assefs are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assefs against current tax liabilities and the following

additional conditions are met:

= in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to

settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:
= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be seffled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and seftle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer [i.e. the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “"holder”) for a loss the
holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance

with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee (being
the transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group's policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss

on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with note 2[r)(iii) if and when [i] it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and
(i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,

less accumulated amortisation.

(i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which are present obligations at
the date of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in accordance with note
2(r)liii). Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations af the date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance
with note 2(r)(iii).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

(iii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are

stated at the present value of the expenditure expected fo settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote.

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided

it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(iii)

HING LEE

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered af the customers’ premises which is faken
fo be the point in time when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after

deduction of any trade discounts.

Licensing income

licensing income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Dividends
= Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right

fo receive payment is established.

= Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Revenue recognition (continued)
(v) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the
conditions atfaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively recognised

in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(t) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the ftransaction dates. Monetfary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of each reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rafes ruling at the dates of the fransactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange
rafes at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to gef ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period

in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the

qualifying asset for its infended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Related parties

[a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group's parent.
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each

parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint

venture of a member of a Group of which the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
(v)  The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related fo the Group.
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i] has significant influence over the entity or is a member of

the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the

Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of customers, the
methods used fo distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following developments are relevant to

the Group's financial statements:
- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets
= Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures

The amendments to HKFRS 7 require certain disclosures to be included in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of transferred financial assets that are not derecognised in their entirety and for any
continuing involvement in transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety, irrespective
of when the related transfer transaction occurred. However, an entity need not provide the disclosures for
the comparative period in the first year of adoption. The Group did not have any significant transfers of
financial assets in previous periods or the current period which require disclosure in the current accounting

period under the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes

Under HKAS 12 deferred tax is required to be measured with reference to the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of the asset(s) in
question. In this regard, the amendments to HKAS 12 introduced a rebuttable presumption that the carrying
amount of investment property carried at fair value under HKAS 40, Investment property, will be recovered
through sale. This presumption is rebutted on a property-by-property basis if the investment property in
question is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over fime, rather than through sale.
The Group does not have investment property and the adoption of these amendments had no material
impact on how the results and financial position for the current and prior periods have been prepared and

presented.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the design, manufacture, sale and marketing of home furniture

products including mainly panel furniture, sofa and bed mattresses and licensing of its own brands.

Turnover represents the sale value of goods supplied to customers and licensing income. The amount of

each significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

Turnover
Sale of goods

Licensing income

OTHER INCOME

Availablefor-sale investments

— loss on disposal

— reclassified from equity on disposal

Bank interest income

Dividend income from availablefor-sale investments
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Government grant (i)

Sales of scrap materials

Others

2012 2011
HK$/000 HK$'000
595,659 600,853
8,936 32,155
604,595 633,008
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
- (2,187)

= 2,563

249 973

3 89

- 20

4,618 4,545
232 405

305 325
5,407 6,733

(i) In 2012, the Group successfully applied for the funding support from the government of the People’s Republic

of China ("PRC") mainly for improvement of production and environmental protection facilities.

In 2011, the Group successfully applied for the funding support from the Shenzhen Enterprise Technical
Innovation Project [RYITARERMAIEIEE) (the "Project”’) set up by the Shenzhen Bureau of Trade and

Industry of the PRC. The purpose of the Project is fo encourage enterprises to develop technical knowhow of

different products.
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6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at affer charging/(crediting):

(a) Finance costs

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

Interest on bank borrowings repayable within 5 years (i) 7,358 4,710
less: interest capitalised (ii) (2,845) (2,273)
4,513 2,437

(i) The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including those which contain a repayment
on demand clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. The interest on bank borrowings for the year which contain a repayment on demand clause

was HK$3,125,000 (2011: HK$4,423,000].

(i) Interest has been capitalised to consfruction in progress at an average annual rate of 8.08% (2011:
7.03%) during the year.

(b) Staff costs

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Directors’ remuneration (note 8) 2,832 5,068
Wages and salaries 112,210 87,672
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses* 135 1,748
Retirement scheme contributions* 6,933 5,725
122,110 100,213

* excluded amount paid to directors
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6  (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c) Other items

Auditor’s remuneration

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
Bad debts written off

Cost of inventories sold* (note 19(b))

Depreciation

loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment, nef

Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)

Write-down of inventories recognised

Impairment of trade receivables recognised/[reversed)

Operating lease rentals: minimum lease payments

— land and buildings

# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$89,950,000 (2011:

2012
HK$’000

880
1,115

7
496,638
13,045
733

18
9,152
2,060

10,853

2011
HK$'000

477,772
11,551
(20
(3,245)
2,014
[(358)

13,311

HK$78,203,000) relating to staff costs,

depreciation and amortisation expenses and operating lease charges, which amount is also included

in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(b) for each of these types of

expenses.

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

Current year provision
- Hong Kong Profits Tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Prior year (over)/underprovision

- Hong Kong Profits Tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax
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INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax rate:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

(Loss)/profit before taxation (37,029) 48,637
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation (6,110) 8,025
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses (v) 1,173 2,528
Tax effect of non-taxable income (vi) (2,724) (7,752)
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in the PRC (4,504) 57
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences 57 52
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not recognised previously (114) (672)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised 13,589 568
Prior year underprovision 221 26
Others 89 82
Actual tax expense 1,677 2,914

i

J Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations, the Group is not subject to income fax in Bermuda

and the BVI.

lij  The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2012 is calculated at 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) of the

estimated assessable profit for the year.

(i)  Hing lee Ideas Limited is subject to Company Income Tax in Malaysia. No provision for 2012

(201 1: Nil) is made as it has been dormant since its incorporation.

liv)]  With the New Enterprise Income Tax law (the “New EIT law"] becoming effective on 1 January

2008, all enterprises in the PRC are subject to a standard enterprise income tax rate of 25%.

However, there is a transitional period for enterprises which are currently entitled to preferential tax
freatments granted by relevant tax authorities. In accordance with BIEz B & i 2 FR1SHLE
EEBBERAAA) (the Notice of the State Council on the Implementation of the Enterprise Income
Tax Transitional Preferential Policy) issued on 26 December 2007:

(@) from 1 January 2008, for enterprises that enjoyed a preferential tax rate of 15%, the tax rate

would be transitioned to 25% over five years af rafes of 18% in 2008, 20% in 2009, 22%
in 2010, 24% in 2011 and 25% in 2012; and
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7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(iv)]  (continued)

(b)  from 1 January 2008, the entferprises that originally enjoyed the preference of regular tax
reduction and exemption, would continue to enjoy the original preference in accordance
with the preferential measures and terms stipulated by the original tax law, administrative
regulations and relevant documents until the expiration of the preference.

Dongguan Super Furniture Company Limited ("Dongguang Super Funiture”) was subject to the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") rate of 25% in 2012 (2011: 25%).

Shenzhen Xingli Fumniture Company Limited (“Shenzhen Xingli”) was subject to the PRC EIT
rate of 25% in 2012 (2011: 24%).

Shenzhen Xingli Zundian Furniture Company Limited was subject to the PRC EIT rate of 25%
in 2012 (2011: 24%).

Shenzhen Oulo Furniture Company Limited (“Shenzhen Oulo”) was subject to the PRC EIT rate
of 12.5% for 2012 (2011: 12%).

(v) It mainly represents the tax effect of impairment of trade and other receivables and write-down of
inventories of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries and certain expenses incurred by Great Ample Holdings
limited and the Company.

(vi) It mainly represents the tax effect of licensing income eamed by Sharp Motion Worldwide Llimited.
The licensing fees payable by the licensees to the Group were subject to 10% withholding tax
in the PRC. However, it is a term of the licence agreements that the licensing fees receivable by
the Group should be net of any tax and the licensees are responsible to pay any tax imposed on
the licensing fees payable by the licensees to the Group. As such, the licensing fees as agreed
between the Group and the licensees were on a netof-tax basis and the licensees were responsible
to pay the relevant withholding tax separately to the tax authorities at their own costs.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and

the Listing Rules is as follows:

2012
Retirement
Directors’ Discretionary scheme Share-based
Name of director fees Salaries bonuses contributions  Sub-total  payments Total

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Execuive direclors
Sung Kai Hing (Chairman) 1,002 - - 14 1,016 200 1,216
Cheung Kong Cheung 1,002 - - 14 1,016 200 1,216

Non-execufive director

Fang Yan Zau, Alexander 100 - - - 100 - 100

Independent

non-executive directors

Sun Jian 100 - - - 100 - 100
Kong Hing Ki 100 - - = 100 - 100
Shao Hanging 100 - - - 100 - 100
2,404 - - 28 2,432 400 2,832
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

2011
Retirement
Directors’ Discretionary scheme Share-based
Name of director fees Salaries bonuses  confribufions Sub-otal payments Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Executive directors

Sung Kai Hing [Chairman) 1,002 - 1,000 12 2,014 219 2,233

Cheung Kong Cheung 1,002 - 1,000 12 2,014 219 2,233
Non-executive director

Fang Yan Zau, Alexander 100 = = = 100 = 100
Independent

non-executive directors

Sun Jian 100 = - - 100 120 220

Kong Hing Ki 100 = = = 100 4] 141

Shao Hanging 100 = = = 100 41 141

2,404 = 2,000 24 4,478 640 5,068

(i) Share-based payments represent the estimated value of share options granted to the directors under
the Company’s share option scheme. The value of these share options is measured according to the

Group's accounting policy for share-based payment transactions as sef out in note 2(p)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and number of options granted,

are disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme” in the Directors’ Report and note 27.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group as compensation for loss of office during the year.
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INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2011: two) are directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2011: three)

individuals are as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

Salaries and other emoluments 3,130 2,965
Retirement scheme contributions 41 48
Share-based payments 135 568
3,306 3,581

The emoluments of the three (201 1: three) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following

bands:

2012 2011

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 2 3

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company includes a loss of
HK$724,000 (2011: a loss of HK$3,422,000), which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company.
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11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive (loss)/income:

2012 2011
Before tax Tax Net-of-tax Before fax Tax Netoffax
amount expense amount amount expense amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries (249) - (249) 12,107 = 12,107
Availableforsale investments:
Gain/[loss) on fair value changes of
availableforsale investments 18 - 18 (15) - (15)
Reclassification adjustments upon
disposal of availableforsale investments - - - 2,563 - (2,563
Other comprehensive loss|/income (231) - (231) 9,529 = 9,529

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/eamings per share is based on the loss attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of HK$40,520,000 (2011: profit of HK$41,418,000) and
the weighted average number of 242,398,675 (2011: 230,031,289 ordinary shares in issue

during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares is calculated as follows:

2012 2011

Number of Number of

shares shares

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 242,398,675 205,994,675
Effect of shares issued relating

fo acquisition of subsidiaries - 24,036,614
Weighted average number of

ordinary shares at 31 December 242,398,675 230,031,289
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12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amount presented for the year ended 31
December 2012 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding had an anti-

dilutive effect on the basic loss per share amount presented.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2011 was based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the Company of HK$41,418,000 and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) of 232,527,403 shares calculated as

follows:
2011
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 31 December 230,031,289

Effect of deemed issue of shares under the Company’s share

option scheme for nil consideration (note 27) 2,496,114

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at
31 December 232,527,403

13 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages ifs businesses by divisions, which are organised by a mixture of both business
lines (products and services) and geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported infernally to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following two reportable segments.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

Panel furniture: Design, manufacture, sale and marketing of wood panel furniture and

licensing of own brand names
Upholstered furniture: Design, manufacture, sale and marketing of sofa and bed mattresses

However, Group financing (including interest revenue and expenses) and income taxes are managed on a

group basis and are not allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm'’s length basis in a manner similar to

fransactions with third parties.

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 73

ANNUAL REPORT 2012



- Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

74

13 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments for the years ended 31 December 2012

and 2011 is set out below:

Revenue from external customers

Intersegment revenue

Reporiable segment revenue

Interest income

Inferest expense

Depreciafion and amorfisafion
Reportable segment [loss|/profit
Other material norrcash ifems:

Impaiment of frade receivables

[recognised,/reverssd

Witedown of inventories

[recognised],/reversed
Reporiable segment assefs
Expendiures for non-current ossefs

Reportable segment libilfes

2012 2011
Panel-  Upholstered Pangt Upholsiered

furniture  furniture  Unallocated Consolidated furiture fumitie  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS000  HKFOO0  HKS000  HKS'000
460,392 144,203 - 604,595 476,750 156,28 = 633,008
- 3,352 - 3,352 - 5,132 - 5,132
460,392 147,555 - 607,947 476,750 161,390 = 638,140
- - 249 249 = = 973 973

- - sy (8s13) - Y Yy
(12072 (2,088) - (4080 (0957 (719 - e
@10 4,240 - [e8T) B 1285 -
(2,060) - - (2,060) 24 134 - 358
6830 (322 -5 8oy 0] - oy
555,789 90,805 78,600 725,194 484073 63,492 189,063 736,028
50,208 118 = 50,326 102,664 681 = 103,345
216,856 31,851 114,636 363,343 162,309 12,764 153,855 328,928
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13 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Revenues
Reportable segment revenue 607,947 638,140
Elimination of inter-segment revenue (3,352) (5,132)
Consolidated revenue (note 4) 604,595 633,008
Profit or loss
Reportable segment (loss)/profit (36,871) 47,705
Other income 5,407 6,733
Unallocated amounts:
Interest expense (4,513) (2,437)
Other head office and corporate expenses (1,052) (3,364)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before taxation (37,029) 48,637
Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 646,594 547,565
Available-for-sale investments* 65 44
Unallocated head office and corporate assets 78,535 189,019
Consolidated total assets 725,194 736,628
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 248,707 175,073
Current taxation 1,191 2,721
Unallocated head office and corporate liabilities 113,445 151,134
Consolidated total liabilities 363,343 328,928

Segment assets do not include available-for-sale investments as these assets are managed on a group

basis.
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13 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue

from external customers and [ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease

payments and goodwill (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical location of customers

is based on the location at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The

geographical location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of the

assets.

Asia (excluding the PRC)
Europe

PRC

The United States
Others

2012 2011

Revenues Revenues
from Specified from Specified
external non-current external non-current
customers assets cusfomers assets
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
170,045 1,301 188,473 1,823
34,616 - 27,870 -
341,013 401,426 384,810 367,085
39,782 - 22,521 -
19,139 - 9,334 -
604,595 402,727 633,008 368,908

Asia mainly covers Japan, Taiwan, Middle East and Southeast Asia; Europe mainly covers Sweden,

ltaly, Spain and Germany; and others mainly cover Canada, Africa and South America.

(d) Major customers

The Group's customer base is diversified and there is no customer with whom transactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's revenues in 2012 and 2011.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group
Leasehold Motor Office Plant and  Construction
Buildings improvements vehicles  equipment  machinery in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost
At 1 January 2011 99,617 3,202 6,271 17,050 68,423 8,104 202,817
Exchange realignment 4,943 199 141 813 3,109 407 9,612
Acquisition of
subsidiaries [nofe 29) - 1799 165 171 1,676 - 3,811
Additions 4317 - 169 1,852 4,031 02976 103,345
Disposals - - (395) - - - (395)
At 31 December 2011 108,877 5,260 6,351 19,886 77,239 101,577 319,190
Ai 1 Jonuory 2012 108,877 5,260 6,351 19,886 77,239 101,577 319,190
Exchange realignment 26| (1] il 5) (17) 26| 76]
Additions - 20 711 2,866 16,660 30,069 50,326
Disposals - (2,422 (1,259) (1,326] (18,787) - (23,794)
Transfer 110,462 - - - 18,079 (128,541) -
At 31 December 2012 219313 2,857 5,802 21 421 03,174 3,079 345,646
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Jonuary 2011 1,363 2960 2978 2760 29 542 = 39,603
Exchange realignment 67 142 09 100 1,016 = 1,394
Charge for the year 2,149 542 901 1,898 6,001 - 11,551
Whitien back on disposals - - (355) - - - 355)
At 31 December 2011 3,579 3,644 3,593 4758 36,619 - 52,193
Ai 1 Jonuary 2012 3,579 3,644 3,593 4758 36,619 - 52,193
Exchange realignment 9 2 | 6 14 = 32
Charge for the year 2,803 693 075 2,229 6,345 - 13,045
Whitien back on disposals - 2,422 (1,259) (1112 (16,778 - 21,571)
At 31 December 2012 6,391 1917 3,310 5,881 26,200 = 43,699
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 212,922 940 2492 15,540 66,974 3,079 301,947
At 31 December 2011 105,298 1616 2,758 15,128 40,620 101,577 266,997

At 31 December 2012, the Group had pledged its buildings and construction in progress with carrying
value of HK$216,001,000 (2011: HK$206,875,000) to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 24).
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15 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise leasehold land for industrial use in the PRC under medium-

term leases, as follows:

The Group
HK$'000

Cost
At 1 January 2011 53,291
Exchange realignment 2,646
At 31 December 2011 55,937
At 1 January 2012 55,937
Exchange realignment (14)
At 31 December 2012 55,923
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2011 3,722
Exchange realignment 186
Charge for the year 1,119
At 31 December 2011 5,027
At 1 January 2012 5,027
Exchange realignment 2
Charge for the year 1,115
At 31 December 2012 6,144
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 49,779
At 31 December 2011 50,910
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[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

An analysis for reporting purposes is as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
HKS$’000 HK$'000
Current portfion 1,119 1,119
Non-current portion 48,660 49,791
49,779 50,910

Prepaid lease payments are amortised over the term of the leases of 50 years, commencing from 29 June

2007 and expiring on 28 June 2057.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had pledged its leasehold land with carrying value of
HK$49,779,000 (2011: HK$50,910,000) to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 24).

The land use rights of the above leasehold land are not allowed to be transferred or leased pursuant to

the contracts for grant of the land use rights.

GOODWILL

The Group

HK$'000

Cost
At 1 January 2011 =
Additions (note 29) 52,120
At 31 December 2011, 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 52,120
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2012 52,120
At 31 December 2011 52,120
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16 GOODWILL (continued)

80

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units ("CGU") identified according to the business

segment as follows:

2012 2011
HKS$’000 HK$'000
Upholstered furniture 52,120 52,120

The recoverable amount of the CGU is defermined based on value in use calculations. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a one-year
period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period were then exirapolated using the estimate rates stated

below for the following five years.

Key assumptions used for value in use calculations:

2012 2011
Gross margin 22% 29%
Growth rate 0% - 10% 10%
Discount rate 6% 5%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin and growth rate based on past performance and
its expectation for market development. The growth rate does not exceed the longterm average growth
rate for the business in which the CGU operates. The discount rate used is pre-fax rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, management of the Group defermined that there

are no impairments of any of its CGU containing goodwill.
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INVESTMENTS IN AND ACCOUNTS WITH A SUBSIDIARY
The Company

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

Unlisted shares, at cost 156 156
Dividend receivable from a subsidiary 61,175 61,175
Amount due from a subsidiary 104,427 104,742

The dividend receivable from a subsidiary and amount due from a subsidiary are unsecured, interestfree

and have no fixed terms of repayment.
Details of the Group's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Particulars of
issued and

Place of fully paid-up
incorporation share capital/ Proportion of Group’s
Name of company and registration registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
2012 2011
Directly held by the Company
Great Ample Holdings Limited i BV US§20,001 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
Indirectly held through subsidiaries
Glory Skill Investments Limited i BVl US$2,961 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
Springrich Investments Limited (i BV US$1 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
Success Profit Intemational Limited (i BVl US$10,001 100% 100%  Invesiment holding
Hing Lee (China) Company Limited Hong Kong HK$18,010,000 100% 100%  Invesiment holding and provision
("Hing Lee (China)'| of management services
Hing Lee Furniture Company Limited BV US$1 100% 100%  Trading of furiture
(Hing Lee Fumiture'|
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17 INVESTMENTS IN AND ACCOUNTS WITH A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Particulars of
issued and

Place of fully paid-up
incorporation share capital/ Proportion of Group’s
Name of company and registration registered capital ownership interest  Principal activity
2012 2011

Sharp Motion Worldwide Limited i BV US4 100% 100%  Trademark holding/licensing

Hing Lee Ideas Limited i Maloysia INY 100% 100%  Domant

Renowned Idea Group Limited (] BV US$ 1 100% 100%  Domant

Hing Lee Fumiture Group Limited Hong Kong HK$3 100% 100%  Dormant

Hander Inferational limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Invesiment holding

Hanmix Limited Hong Kong HK$ 100% 100%  Invesiment holding

Asiromax Invesiment Limited
(*Astromax) [ BVI US§100 60% 60%  Invesiment holding

City Leading Limited
(‘City Leading’) [ Hong Kong HK$ 60% 60%  Trading of sofa

MIEFEARAERAR PRC RMBA0,000,000 100% 100%  Design, manufacture, sale and
[Shenzhen Xingli Zundian markefing of home fumiture
Furiture Company limited) il

MIBHZEFRAR PRC RMB73,500,000 100% 100%  Design, manufacture, sale and
(Shenzhen Xingli Furniture markefing of home fumiture
Company Limited| (i

RRERFAARA PRC US$1,680,000 100% 100%  Manufociure and sale
(Dongguan Super Fumiture of bed matfresses
Company Limited| (i

HIBEZEERAE PRC RMBS,500,000 60% 60%  Monufocture and sale of sofa
(Shenzhen Qulo Furniture
Company Limited| i
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[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

INVESTMENTS IN AND ACCOUNTS WITH A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Notes:
(i) Companies not audited by Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited.
(ii) Acquired in 2011 [note 29).

(i)  Companies registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises. The English translation of the

company names is for reference only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Listed equity investments, at market value
- Hong Kong 65 44
INVENTORIES
(o) Inventories in the statement of financial position comprise:
The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Raw materials 22,024 17,918
Work in progress 18,880 18,542
Finished goods 64,685 67,292
Goods in fransit 12,787 7,690
118,376 111,442
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19 INVENTORIES (continued)

(b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in profit or loss is

as follows:
The Group

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

Carrying amount of inventories sold 496,638 477,772

Write-down of inventories recognised 9,152 9,014

505,790 486,786

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000

Trade debtors and bills receivable 34,334 50,365 - -

Less: allowance for doubtful debts
[note 20(b)) (5,412) (3,3406) - -
28,922 47,019 - -

Deposits paid for purchase of property,

plant and equipment 17,049 16,897 - =

Deposits paid to suppliers 35,829 32,705 - -

Value added tax recoverable 15,436 13,562 - -
Other deposits, prepayments and

receivables 10,762 10,545 12 31

79,076 73,709 12 31

107,998 120,728 12 31

The amount of the Group’s and the Company's deposits and prepayments expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense after more than one year is HK$2,398,000 (2011: HK$2,680,000) and HK$nil
(201 1: HK$nil) respectively. All of the other trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or

recognised as expense within one year.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a)

Ageing analysis

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors and bills receivable (net of allowance for

doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the reporting period:

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current 23,899 35,731
less than 3 months past due 1,086 4,428
3 to 6 months past due 2,616 3,455
6 to 12 months past due 358 1,862
More than 12 months past due 963 1,543
28,922 47,019

Trade debtors and bills receivable are non-interest bearing and are generally due within 30 to 90
days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in note 30(al(i).

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills receivable are recorded using an allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 2(i)fi)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, is as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
At 1 January 3,346 3,528
Exchange realignment 6 176
Impairment loss recognised/(reversed) 2,060 (358)
At 31 December 5,412 3,346

At 31 December 2012, the Group's trade debtors and bills receivable of HK$5,412,000 (2011:
HK$3,346,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and management assessed that only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are neither individually nor collectively

considered to be impaired are set ouf in note 20(al.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to customers for whom there was no
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to customers that have good
creditworthiness. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

21 RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

Included in the restricted bank deposits was a sefflement guarantee of approximately HK$nil (2011:
HK$7,062,000) to the main contractor for the new production facilities of the Group in Shenzhen,
required by the CRIITTZRTIZREREHBHIHE) (Shenzhen Construction Assurance Practice Note) imposed
by CRYITER B (Shenzhen Construction Bureau). The setflement guarantee was released in 2012 upon

the finalisation of the construction of the production facilities.

The remaining HK$1,517,000 (2011: HK$3,695,000) represents deposits pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 24).

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Deposits with banks 7,776 18,119 - -
Cash at bank and on hand 87,133 116,268 325 6,587
94,909 134,387 325 6,587
less: restfricted bank deposits (nofe 21) (1,517) (10,757) - =
Cash and cash equivalents 93,392 123,630 325 6,587
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Trade creditors and bills payable 167,415 131,914 - -
Accrued charges 34,026 29,930 1,080 2,760
Accrued inferest 259 = - =
Receipts in advance 29,500 18,293 - -
Payables for purchase of property,
plant and equipment 9,253 14,308 - =
Other payables 8,162 6,858 - =
81,200 69,389 1,080 2,760
248,615 201,303 1,080 2,760

less: non-current portion of payables for
purchase of property, plant and equipment

classified as non-current liabilities (6,647) = - =

241,968 201,303 1,080 2,760

The ageing analysis of trade creditors and bills payable as of the end of the reporting period is as

follows:
The Group

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Within 3 months 124,777 113,860
3 months to 1 year 41,169 16,070
Over 1 year 1,469 1,984
167,415 131,914

All trade and other payables, except for those balances classified as non-current liabilities, are expected

to be settled within one year.
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24 BANK BORROWINGS

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are analysed as follows:

Bank loans — secured

Trust receipt loans — secured

Current portion
Due within 1 year

Due after 1 year which contain a repayment on demand clause

Non-current portion

At 31 December 2012, bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years
After 2 years but within 5 years

88 HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
102,660 124,904
10,877 -
113,537 124,904

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
64,374 60,822
13,400 64,082
77,774 124,904
35,763 -
113,537 124,904

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
64,374 60,822
22,738 22,742
26,425 41,340
49,163 64,082
113,537 124,904
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[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The above amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements and

ignore the effect of any repayment on demand clause.
Details on the inferest rate profile of the Group are set out in note 30(alliii).

None of the portion of term loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayable on demand

clause is expected to be settled within one year.

The Group's banking facilities are secured by:

(i) a letter of undertaking over the Group's construction in progress and buildings (note 14);
li)  legal charges over the Group’s medium-term leasehold land outside Hong Kong [note 15);
[iii)  restricted bank deposits of the Group [note 21); and

liv)]  guarantees from the Government of the HKSAR under the Special loan Guarantee Scheme and the

SME Loan Guarantee Scheme.

At 31 December 2012, the Group's banking facilities amounted to HK$146,456,000 (201 1:
HK$168,815,000). The facilities were utilised to the extent of HK$118,593,000 (201 1:
HK$137,222,000).

All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of covenants, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was fo breach the covenants the drawn down
facilities would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 30(allii). At 31

December 2012, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been breached (2011:

Nil).

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the statement of financial position represents:

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Hong Kong Profits Tax payable 1,026 638
PRC Enterprise Income Tax payable 165 2,083
1,191 2,721
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INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b)

Deferred taxation

At 31 December 2012, the Group has not recognised deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary
differences of HK$ 104,000 (2011: HK$161,000).

At 31 December 2012, the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of HK$70,864,000 (2011: HK$14,327,000) as it is not probable that future taxable
profits, against which the assets can be utilised, will be available in relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity. Of the total tax losses, HK$56,838,000 (2011: HK$988,000) will expire within 5 years
and the remaining tax losses of HK$ 14,026,000 (2011: HK$13,339,000) have no expiry date

under the current tax legislation.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has unrecognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$ 1,880,000
(2011: HK$4,710,000) in relation to withholding tax on undistributed earnings of
HK$37,603,000 (2011: HK$94,191,000) due to the retention of undistributed earnings by the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC determined by the directors of the Company.

The Company does not have any material temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements (2011: Nil), and therefore, no

provision for deferred tax has been made.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme (the "“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong) for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined confribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions fo the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior to 1 June 2012).

Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme which is the central pension scheme operated by local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are required to confribute a percentage of their payroll

costs to the central pension scheme as specified by the local municipal government.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(a) Pre-IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company on 29 May 2009
On 22 December 2006, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2006 Scheme”) under

which options to subscribe for shares of the Company had been granted to certain directors and
employees of the Group. Pursuant to a written resolution of the shareholders on 29 May 2009, the
2006 Scheme was terminated and all of the share options granted thereunder were cancelled and
replaced by options granted under the pre-IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company on
29 May 2009 ("Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is to grant new options to replace the options granted under the 2006 Scheme and to continue to
give the participants of the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme an opportunity to share in the success of
the Group and to motivate the participants to optimize their performance and efficiency and also
fo retain participants whose contributions are important to the long-term growth and profitability of
the Group. The PrePO Share Option Scheme was valid and effective for the period from 29 May
2009 to 21 June 2009, being the day immediately prior to the Company's date of listing, after
which period no further options will be offered and granted but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall remain in force and effect in all other respects with respect to options granted
during the life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Under the PreslPO Share Option Scheme, the board of directors (the “Board”) may at their discretion

grant options to directors, full-ime employees, executives and officers of the Company and/or any

of its subsidiaries.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pre-IPO share option scheme adopted by the Company on 29 May 2009 (continued)

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted by the grantee within 14 days from the date of
the offer, upon payment of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant. The maximum number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme shall
not exceed 20,000,000 shares (representing 10% of the total issued shares of the Company but
excluding the issue and allotment of shares upon the exercise of the options which have been or
may be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the

Company).

The exercise period of the options granted is determined by the Board and shall not exceed 10
years from the date of the grant. The exercise price of the options is deftermined by the Board and

shall not be less than the nominal value of the shares.

Share option scheme adopted by the Company on 29 May 2009

Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company on 29 May 2009, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2009 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the
2009 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant opfions fo participants as incenfives
or rewards for their confribution to the growth of the Group and to provide the Group with a more

flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate and/or provide benefits to the participants. The
2009 Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years from 29 May 2009.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Board may at their discretion grant options to full-time
or parttime employees, directors (including executive, non-executive or independent non-executive)
and any consultants or advisers (whether professional or otherwise and whether on an employment
or confractual or honorary basis or otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributors, contractors,
suppliers, service providers, agents, customers and business partners of the Company and/or any

of its subsidiaries.
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27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(b) Share option scheme adopted by the Company on 29 May 2009 (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted by the grantee within 14 days from the
date of the offer, upon payment of HK$1 by way of consideration for the grant. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time fo
time. In addition, the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any other share optfion schemes of the
Company (excluding the Pre-lPO Share Option Scheme) must not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 22 June 2009, being the scheme mandate limit. The Board may seek
approval by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting to renew the scheme mandate
limit, provided that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2009 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company in these circumstances must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
at the date of approval of the renewed limit. Options previously granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the 2009 Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company and exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the renewed limit. The Board may seek separate shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant
options beyond the scheme mandate limit or the renewed limit provided that the opfions in excess
of the scheme mandate limit or the renewed limit are granted only to the participants specifically
identified by the Company before such approval is sought. The total number of shares issued and
fo be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options under the 2009 Share Option Scheme) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company unless approved by the shareholders of the

Compony in genero| meetings.

The exercise period of the options granted is determined by the Board and shall not exceed 10
years from the date of the grant. The exercise price of the options is deftermined by the Board and
shall be at least the highest of (i the closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the offer date; [ii] the average closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the offer

date; and [(iii) the nominal value of a share.
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27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Details of the movements in share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the 2009 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Number of share options
Outstanding Outstanding
Vesting and asof  Granfed  Exercised as of
Name of Exercise exercise 1 January during during 31 December
parficipants Option scheme Date of grant price period 212 theyear  the year 2012
HK§

Directors

Sung Kei Hing PrePO Share Opton Scheme 29 May 2009 1.0647 23Dec 200910 1498670 = - 1498670
30 Dec 2016

2009 Share Option Scheme 3 My 2011 I,

o

0 S May 201210 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
4 May 2014504
1 Jan 2013 1o
4 May 201450

Cheung Kong Cheung ~ Pre!PO Share Opfion Scheme 29 May 2009 10647 23Dec 2009t 1,498,670 - - 1.498,670
30 Dec 2016

2009 Share Oplon Scheme 3 May 2011 1.80 SMay 201210 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000
4 May 2014504
I Jan 2013 fo
4 May 2014504

Sun Jion PrePO Share Opton Scheme 29 May 2009 1.0647 23 Dec 2009 10 749 335 - - 749 335
19 Jun 2017 (50%)
20)un 2010 o
19 Jun 2017 (25%)
20)un 2017 fo
19 Jun 2017 (25%)

2009 Share Option Scheme 23 Apr 2010 1422 WA 01t 300,000 = = 300,000
22 hor 2013 (30
I Jan 2012 fo

22 hpr 2013 (50%)

Kong Hing Ki 2009 Share Option Scheme 23 A 20

0 1422 23 Apr 01T o 300,000 - - 300,000
22 hpr 2013 (50%
I Jan 2012 o
22 hpr 2013 (50%

Shoo Hanging 2009 Share Opfion Scheme 23 Apr 20

0 1422 23 Apr 01T o 300,000 - - 300,000
22 Apr 2013 (0%
[ Jan 2012 o
22 Apr 2013 (0%
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

()

Details of the movements in share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the 2009 Share Option Scheme are as follows: (continued)

Number of share options

Outstanding Outstanding

Vesting and asof  Granfed  Exercised as of

Name of Exercise exercise 1 January during during 31 December

parficipants Option scheme Date of grant price period 212 theyear  the year 2012
HK§

Employees PrefPO Share Opton Scheme 29 May 2000 1.0647 23Dec 200910 1,498,670 - - 1498670
30 Dec 2016 [50%
31 Dec 2000 1o
30 Dec 2016 [25%)
31 Dec 201010
30 Dec 2016 [25%)

PrefPO Share Opton Scheme 29 May 2009 10647 23Dec 200910 749,335 =
19 Jun 2017 (503
0Jn 20101
19 Jun 2017 (25%
0)n 20111
19 Jun 2017 (25%

749,335

PrefPO Share Opton Scheme 29 May 2009 1.0647 23Dec 200910 2,997 340 - - 2997 340
30 Dec 2016

2009 Share Oplon Scheme 23 Apr 2010 1422 23 A 201110 11,100,000 - - 11,100,000
22 hpr 2013 (50%
1 Jan 201210
22 hpr 2013 (50%

[

2009 Share Option Scheme 3 May 2011 1.80 3 May 201210 1,000,000 =
4 May 2014 (30
1 Jan 2013 1o

4 May 20141504

1,000,000

24.992,020 =

24,992,020
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27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Details of the movements in share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the 2009 Share Option Scheme are as follows: (continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows, whereby all options are settled by

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

(i)
physical delivery of shares:
Number of
options
Options fo directors:
- replaced on 29 May 2009 3,746,675
- granted on 23 April 2010 900,000
- granted on 5 May 2011 3,000,000
Options fo employees:
- replaced on 29 May 2009 11,240,020
- granted on 23 April 2010 11,100,000
- granted on 5 May 2011 1,000,000
- exercised on 26 October 2010 (5,994,675]
Total share options granted
and outstanding 24,992,020
96 HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

Vesting conditions
Vesting from 23 December 2009
to 20 June 2011

Vesting from 23 April 2011
fo 1 Jan 2012

Vesfing from 5 May 2012
fo 1 Jan 2013
Vesting from 23 December 2009

to 20 June 2011

Vesting from 23 April 2011
fo 1 Jan 2012

Vesting from 5 May 2012
fo 1 Jan 2013

Contractual
life of options

29 May 2009
fo 19 June 2017

23 April 2010
fo 22 April 2013

5 May 2011
to 4 May 2014
29 May 2009

to 19 June 2017

23 April 2010
fo 22 April 2013

5 May 2011
fo 4 May 2014
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27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Details of the movements in share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and the 2009 Share Option Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(i)~ The number and weighted average exercise prices of the share options are as follows:
2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options
HK$ HK$
Outstanding af the beginning of the year 1.3539 24,992,020 1.2689 20,992,020
Granted during the year - - 1.80 4,000,000
Outstanding af the end of the year 1.3539 24,992,020 1.3539 24,992,020
Exercisable af the end of the year 1.3151 22,992,020 1.2077 14,992,020

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had an exercise price of HK$1.0647 to
HK$1.8 (2011: HK$1.0647 to HK$1.8) and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 1.8 years (2011: 2.8 vyears].

(i ~ Fair valve of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in refurn for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based on the binomial lattice model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise are

incorporated into the model.
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27 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Details of the movements in share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share

Option Scheme and the 2009 Share Option Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(iii)

HING LEE

Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)

The fair value of share options and assumptions used by the binomial lattice model in the

valuation of options granted in 2011 are as follows:

Options

granted on

5 May

2011

Weighted average fair value at measurement date HK$0.28
Share price HK$1.60
Exercise price HK$1.80
Expected volatility 40%
Option life 3 years
Expected dividend yield 2.47%
Risk-free interest rate 0.93%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated based on the weighted
average remaining life of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair value

estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement of the services received. There were no

market conditions associated with the share option grants.

(HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28 SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(a) Movement in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group's
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company's individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of

the year are set out below:

The Company

Share
Share Share option Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Balance at 1 January 2011 2,060 83,623 5,875 34,493 126,051
loss and fofal comprehensive loss for the year - - - (3,422) (3,422)
Dividends approved in respect

of the previous year - - - (7,757) (7,757)
Shares issued relafing fo acquisifion

of subsidiaries 364 57,882 - - 58,246
Equity-sefiled share-based transactions = = 2,388 = 2,388
Dividends declared in respect

of the current year - - - (5,575) (5,575)
Balance at 31 December 2011

and at 1 January 2012 2,424 141,505 8,263 17,739 169,931
Loss and fofal comprehensive loss for the year - - - [724) (724)
Dividends approved in respect

of the previous year - - - (4,727) (4,727)
Equity-sefiled share-based fransactions = = 535 = 535
Balance at 31 December 2012 2,424 141,505 8,798 12,288 165,015
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28 SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b)

(c)

100 HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Dividends

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year are as follows:

Interim dividend declared and paid of HKnil cents

per ordinary share (2011: HK2.30 cenfs per ordinary share)

Final dividend in respect of previous financial year, approved

and paid during the year of HK1.95 cents per ordinary

share (2011: HK3.20 cents per ordinary share)

Final dividend proposed after the reporting period of

HKnil cents per ordinary share (201 1: HK1.95 cents

per ordinary share)

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
= 5,575

4,727 7,757
4,727 138,832

- 4,727

4,727 18,059

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period had not been recognised as a

liability at the end of the reporting period.

Share capital

Authorised:
At 31 December

lssued and fully paid:

At T January

lssued upon acquisition of subsidiaries [note 29)

At 31 December

2012 2011

Number of Number of

ordinary ordinary
shares of Amount shares of Amount
HK$0.01 each HK$’000 HK$0.01 each HK$'000
1,000,000,000 10,000 1,000,000,000 10,000
242,398,675 2,424 205,994,675 2,060
- - 36,404,000 364
242,398,675 2,424 242,398,675 2,424
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28 SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Share capital (continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time fo time and
are entitled to one vote per share at the meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with

regard to the Company's residual assefs.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

li]  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong which are dealt with in

accordance with the accounting policies as set out in note 2(f).

(i) Statutory reserve fund

Subsidiaries in the PRC are required fo transfer 10% of the net profits, as defermined in
accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer of this fund must be

made before distribution of dividends to equity holders.

The statutory reserve fund can be used to make good of previous years' losses, if any, and
may be converted info capital provided that the balance of the general reserve fund after

such conversion is not less than 25% of their registered capital.

(iv]  Merger reserve

The Group's merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate net assets of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Group and the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued

under the 2004 Reorganisation.

(v) Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which are yet to
be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy as sef out in note 2(pl(ii). The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium account where the related options
are exercised, or be transferred fo refained profits where the related options expired or be
forfeited.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(vi]  Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities held at the end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with

the accounting policies in notes 2(f) and 2(i)li).

(vii)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value of consideration paid for
acquisition of additional interest in a non-wholly owned subsidiary over the decrease in the

carrying amount of the non-controlling interest.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2012, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$153,793,000 (2011: HK$159,244,000), being the
aggregate of the share premium and refained profits of the Company. The Company's share

premium account in the amount of HK$141,505,000 (2011: HK$141,505,000) may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares only.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a

going concern while maximising the refurn to stakeholders through maintaining healthy capital ratio.

The capital structure of the Group consists of availableforsale investments disclosed in note 18,
cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 22, secured bank loans disclosed in note 24 and
equity affributable to equity shareholders of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves

and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors review the capital structure on an annual basis. As a part of this review, management
considers the cost of capital, the changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
each class of capital. The directors will balance the Group’s overall capital structure through the

payment of dividends.
The Group's overall strategy remained unchanged during the year.
In order to maintain or adjust the adjusted net debtto-capital rafio, the Group may adjust the

amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise

new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28 SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(f) Capital management (continued)

The adjusted net debtto-capital ratio at 31 December 2012 and 2011 was as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bank borrowings [note 24) 113,537 124,904
less: Cash and cash equivalents [note 22) (93,392) (123,630)
Deposits pledged for securing banking facilities (note 21) (1,517) (3,695)
Adjusted net debt/(cash) 18,628 (2,421)
Total equity 361,851 407,700
Adjusted capital 361,851 407,700
Adjusted net debtto-capital ratio 5% N/A

29 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 5 May 2011, the Group acquired 60% of the equity interest of Astromax. The principal business of
Astromax is investment holding and its principal asset as at the date hereof is its 100% shareholding in
City leading, which is an investment holding company holding 100% equity interest in Shenzhen Oulo.
Shenzhen Oulo is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of sofa to overseas and in the PRC.

The Group elected to measure the non-controlling interest in Astromax, City leading and Shenzhen Oulo

(the “Astromax Group”) at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the Astromax Group's

identifiable net assets.
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29

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Astromax Group as at the date of acquisition

were as follows:

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

HK$'000

Property, plant and equipment (note 14) 3,811
Inventories 8,616
Trade and other receivables 13,880
Cash and cash equivalents 2,122
Tax refundable 135
Trade and other payables (18,354)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 10,210
Non-confrolling interests (4,084)
Goodwill 52,120
Satistied by issuance of shares (note 28|(al) 58,246

The goodwill of HK$52,120,000 arises from a number of factors such as its sales network and industry
know how, other important elements including expected synergies through combining a highly skilled

workforce, product complementary and obtaining economies of scale.
None of the goodwill recognised was expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The fair value of trade and other receivables in the Astromax Group was HK$13,880,000 and includes
trade receivable with a fair value of HK$10,974,000. The gross contractual amount for trade receivables

due was HK$11,166,000, of which HK$ 192,000 was expected to be uncollectible.

The consideration for the acquisition was satisfied by the issue and allotment of 36,404,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company at the date of acquisition on 5 May 2011. The fair value of
the consideration was HK$58,246,400, being the fair value of the shares measured at the closing market
price of HK$1.60 on 5 May 2011.

No acquisition-related costs were charged to the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31

December 2011 as all acquisition related costs were borne by the vendor.
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29 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of the Astromax Group is as follows:

2011

HK$'000

Cash and cash equivalents acquired 2,122
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows

from investing activities 2,122

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(a) Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to a variety of risks including credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow and interest

rate risk and foreign currency risk arising in the normal course of the Group's business activities.

The Group does not have any written risk management policies and guidelines. The directors
monitor the financial risk management of the Group and take measures as considered necessary

from time to time to minimise such financial risks.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that customers may not be able to settle obligations
within the normal terms of transactions. The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation of the
debtors’ financial condition and maintains an account for allowance for doubtful debts based
upon the expected collectibles of all trade and other receivables. At the end of the reporting

period, there were no major concentrations of credit risk.

The maximum exposure fo credit risk is therefore represented by the carrying amount of each

financial asset as stated in the statement of financial position.

(i) Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash

and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest

date the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
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30

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a) Financial risk management (continued)

(ii)

HING LEE

Liquidity risk {continued)

Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity analysis

for other bank loans is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

2012 2011
Total Within ~ More than  More than Totl Wihin ~— Morehon — More fhan
contractual Tyear 1year but 2 years but confracuol Tyeor — Tyerbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted oron lessthan  lessthan  Comying  urdiscounied oon  lessthon  less hon
amount cashflow  demand  2years  5years amoont ~ cashflow  demand 2 years 5 years
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKPOO0  HKS000  HKS000  HKEO000  HKEO00
The Group
Trade crecffors and
bill payable 167415 167415 167415 o - 13914 1394 131914 - =
Other poyables and
acorued charges 51,700 51,700 45,053 6,047 - 51,006 51,096 51,006 - -
Bank borowings 113,537 120290 84,402 17,488 18,400 124904 135098 127712 1,125 6,31
332,652 339405 296870 24,135 18400 307914 318208 31072 1,125 6,361
The Company

Other payables and

accrved chorges 1,080 1,080 1,080 - - 2760 2760 2760 - -

The table that follows summarises the maturity analysis of bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements.
Taking into account the financial position of the Group, the directors do not consider that
it is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The directors believe that such term loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled

repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk (continued)

2012 2011
Total Within ~ More than  More than Totl Wihin ~ Morehon— More fhan
contractual Tyear 1year but 2 years but confracuol Tyeor — Tyerbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted oron lessthan  lessthan  Comying  undiscounied oron lessthon less tham
amount  cashflow  demand  2years  5years amoont ~ cashflow  demand 2 years 5 years

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKPOO0  HKS000  HKS000  HKEO000  HKEO00
The Group

Trade credftors and

bils poyable 167415 167415 167415 - - 1094 13914 131914 - -
Other poyables and
acorued charges 51,700 51,700 45,053 6,047 - 51,006 51,096 51,096

Bank borowings 113,337 120290 71,002 24688 24600 124904 135198 63,630 23867 47,701

332,652 339405 283470 31,335 24600 307014 318208 246640 23867 47,701

The Company

Other payables and
accrved chorges 1,080 1,080 1,080 - - 2760 2760 2760 - -

(iii]  Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rafe risk is the risk

where the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly bank balances and bank deposits. Interest-bearing
financial liabilities are mainly bank borrowings. The Group currently does not have any
inferest rate hedging policy and will consider enfer info interest rate hedging should the need
arise. The Group ensures that it borrows at competitive inferest rates under favourable terms
and conditions. The financial instruments of the Group that are exposed fo inferest rate risk

are disclosed in notes 22 and 24.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a) Financial risk management (continued)

(iii)

HING LEE

Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's bank deposits and interest-

bearing financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

2012 2011
Effective Fffective
Interest rate HK$'000 Interest rate HK$'000
Variable rate bank deposits:
Deposits with bank 0.97% 7,776 3.00% 18,119
Cash at bank 0.12% 86,403 0.38% 116,198
94,179 134,317
Variable rate borrowings:
Bank borrowings 6.17% (113,537) 4.45% (124,904)

The Company has no material exposure to interest rate risk as it has no significant interest-

bearing financial instruments.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument

will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through sales and purchases that
are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and
United States dollars. Hence, the Group's foreign currency risk is considered to be minimal
by the directors of the Company. The Group does not hold or issue any derivative financial
instruments for trading purposes or to hedge against fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
but the management continuously monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider

hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

(iv)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's and the Company’s exposure at the end of the

reporting period to foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities

denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they

relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in Hong Kong

dollars, translated using the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

The Group
2012 2011
Denominated in Denominated in
Hong Kong United Hong Kong United
dollars Renminbi States dollars dollars Renminbi States dollars
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade and other
receivables - - 20,067 - - 14,446
Cash and cash
equivalen's 3,174 9,455 22,680 23,168 9,321 9,062
Trade and other payables - - (2,340) = = 488)
Bank borowings (26,001) - - (33,780) = =
Current faxation - - - (52) = =
Net exposure arising
from recognised assefs
and liabilities (22,827) 9,455 40,407 (10,664| 9,321 23,020
The Company
2012 2011

Cash and cash equivalents

Net exposure arising from recognised assefs

Denominated in Denominated in

Renminbi Renminbi
HK$’000 HK$'000
139 6,298
139 6,298

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is

subject fo exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)
(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(v]  Fair valves
Financial instruments carried at fair value:

The following table presents the carrying value of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instrument
catergorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is significant to that fair

value measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

= level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical financial instruments.

- level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or

indirectly based on observable market data.

= level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using valuation techniques in which any

significant input is not based on observable market data.

The Group
2012 2011
Level 1 level 2 Level 3 Total level 1 level 2 level 3 Tofal
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Assefs

Availableforsale
investments 65 - - 65 44 - - 44
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES (continued)
(b) Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities (including trade debtors and bills receivable,
deposits and other receivables, restricted bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade creditors
and bills payable, and other payables and accrued charges) are assumed to approximate their fair

values.

The fair value of nontrade balances due from/to subsidiaries has not been determined as the
timing of the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably determined because of

the relationship.

31 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2012 not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Contracted for:

— Construction of factory building 74,994 95,132
— Purchase of property, plant and equipment 1,297 4,754
76,291 99,886

Authorised but not contracted for:
— Construction of factory building 117,945 117,974
— Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7,482 7,484
125,427 125,458
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31 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) At 31 December 2012, the total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

The Group
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Within 1 year 5,629 5,222
After 1 year but within 5 years 8,864 14,053
14,493 19,275

32 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
Corporate guarantees given and utilised 69,882 80,778

At 31 December 2012, the Company provided corporate guarantees to the following subsidiaries:

(a) Shenzhen Xingli in relation to banking facilities to the extent of HK$77,000,000 (2011:
HK$77,000,000) of which HK$25,404,000 (201 1: HK$36,988,000) was utilised;

(b) Hing lee Furniture in relation to banking facilities to the extent of HK$54,000,000 (2011
HK$54,000,000) of which HK$36,878,000 (2011: HK$33,800,000) was utilised: and

(c) Hing Llee (China) in relation to banking facilities to the extent of HK$12,000,000 (2011:
HK$12,000,000) of which HK$7,600,000 (201 1: HK$10,000,000) was utilised.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no material liabilities will arise from the above guarantees
in the ordinary course of business and the fair value of the corporate guarantees granted by the Company

is immaterial.

112 HING LEE (HK) HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Notes to the consolidated financial statements -

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company'’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed

in note 9, is as follows:

2012 2011

HK$’000 HK$'000

Shortterm employee benefits 5,534 7,369
Postemployment benefits 69 72
Share-based payments 535 1,208
6,138 8,649

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)).

(b) Balances with related parties

Balances with related parties of the Company are disclosed in the statement of financial position

and in note 17.

34 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures in respect of foreign currency risk have been re-presented to conform with

current year's presentation.
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35

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates

will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year are discussed below.

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a

suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets may not be recoverable, the
assefs may be considered “impaired”, and an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tfested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and the value in use.
In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating to level of sales volume, selling prices
and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sales volume, selling prices and
amount of operating costs. However, actual sales volumes, selling prices and operating costs may
be different from assumptions which may require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the

assets affected.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’'s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges
for its property, plant and equipment. Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different to previously estimated, or will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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35 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
(iv) Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is written
down to net realisable value when there is an objective evidence that the cost of inventories may
not be recoverable. The cost of inventories may not be recovered if those inventories are damaged,
it they have become wholly or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost of
inventories may not also be recoverable if the estimated costs to be incurred to make the sales have
increased. The amount written off to the income statement is the difference between the carrying
value and net realisable value of the inventories. In determining whether the cost of inventories can
be recoverable, significant judgement is required. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,

among other factors, the duration and extent by all means to which the amount will be recovered.

(v) Estimated allowance for receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of trade and other receivables and amounts
due from related parties. Allowance for these receivables is made based on the evaluation of
collectability and on management’s judgement by reference to the estimation of the future cash

flows discounted at the effective interest rate to calculate the present value.

A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
debtors, including their current creditworthiness. If the actual future cash flows were less than

expected, additional allowance may be required.

(vi) Income tax provision

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions, and tax provisions are
made accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is assessed periodically to include the effect of

all changes in tax legislation and practices.
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36

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Up to the datfe of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
which have not been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12,

Consolidated financial statements, joint arrangements

and disclosure of interests in other entities: transition guidance 1 January 2013
Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment Entities 1 January 2014
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: 1 January 2013

Disclosures — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to HKFRS @ and HKFRS 7 — Mandatory effective date
of HKFRS @ and transaction disclosures 1 January 2015

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements — 1 July 2012
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments: 1 January 2014
Presentation — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2013
2009 -2011 Cycle except for the amendments to HKAS 1
HKFRS @, Financial instruments 1 January 2015
HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
HKAS 27 (revised), Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
HKAS 28 (revised), Investments in associates and joint ventures (2011) 1 January 2013
Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits (2011) 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and financial position.
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